Altico Capital India Limited
Annual Report 2017-18

02-23

24-60

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

Corporate Information

01

Know us Better

03

Key Financial Sponsors

04

Financial Parameters

06

Board of Directors

08

Message from the Chairman

12

Message from the CEO

14

Building a Strong and
Sustainable Foundation

18

Contributing to Community

22

Management Discussion and
Analysis

24

Directors’ Report

31

61-101
Financial Statements
Independent Auditor’s Report

61

Balance Sheet

66

Statement of Profit and Loss

67

Cash Flow Statement

68

Notes

70

Forward-Looking Statements
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information
to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take
investment decisions. This report and other statements - written and
oral - that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements
that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans
and assumptions.

To get this report online, log on to
www.alticocap.com

We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using
words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’,
‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with
any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these
forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we
have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievements of results
are subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions.
Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or should
underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers
should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
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Our Vision
Altico Capital is committed to providing responsive and responsible capital
to participate in the burgeoning opportunities for India’s long-term growth.
We believe that deep sector expertise and extensive knowledge of our
customers and market landscape drive our ability to provide innovative
financial solutions backed by strong collateral and cash flows. Altico Capital’s
strength lies in its distinguished Board and a dynamic management team
with an exemplary track record in the credit markets. Highest levels of
governance, sound business practices, financial resourcefulness, unwavering
commitment to credit standards, and best-in-class asset management
discipline reflect our culture of agility, collaboration and continual selfimprovement. We are deeply supported by our renowned sponsors
along with domestic and international financial institutions as we deliver
superior and sustainable risk-adjusted returns.

Our Mission

FINANCING INDIA’S FUTURE
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KNOW US BETTER

Corporate Overview

Incorporated as the erstwhile Clearwater Capital
Partners India Private Limited in January 2004,
Altico Capital is a Systemically Important NonBanking Finance Company, registered with Reserve
Bank of India.
With significant capitalisation from its worldclass financial sponsors – Clearwater Capital
Partners, Abu Dhabi Investment Council (ADIC)
and Värde Partners – it was rebranded as Altico
Capital India Limited in 2015, making it one of
the largest foreign-owned NBFCs in India, in
terms of net worth.
The Company’s primary business involves advancing
loans and financing into real estate sector, logistics,
IT, SEZ, infrastructure and other adjacent sectors.
It focuses on senior secured lending to midincome residential projects and the commercial real
estate sector, across Tier-1 cities in India, which
include Mumbai, NCR, Chennai, Bengaluru, Pune
and Hyderabad.

Altico Capital India Limited
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KEY FINANCIAL SPONSORS
CLEARWATER CAPITAL PARTNERS
Founded in 2001, Clearwater Capital
Partners provides investors with access to
a full spectrum of Asian credit investment
opportunities including direct Lending,
secondary/stressed credit and special
situations. Since inception, the Firm has
made more than 350 investments totalling
over USD 6.5 billion, across sectors and
geographies, both onshore and offshore
(as of March 31, 2018). In addition to
founding Altico, Clearwater has also built
a direct lending platform in China, named
China Houze Group.
The underlying investment philosophy
of the Firm is anchored in execution
and origination, deep analytical rigour
and active management of investments
through to exits.
Clearwater has built an on-the-ground
presence in Asia through locally staffed
offices and companies in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Mumbai, Seoul and Chongqing.
Clearwater’s team of professionals has
deep credit knowledge and restructuring
experience, garnered while working
together throughout several market and
sector cycles.
The breadth of the targeted investment
market and Clearwater’s established and
experienced presence make it possible for
the firm to source, develop and capture
value in diverse opportunities, particularly
targeting to the senior part of the
capital structure.

ABU DHABI INVESTMENT COUNCIL
The Abu Dhabi Investment Council is
an investment arm of the Government
of Abu Dhabi. The Council started
its operations in April 2007 and is
responsible for investing part of the
government’s surplus financial resources
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through a globally diversified investment
strategy, targeting positive capital
returns through an expansive portfolio of
highly diversified asset classes and active
investment management strategies. In
the short time since its inception, the
Council has established a reputation for
its entrepreneurial spirit, open culture
and quick decision-making process.

VÄRDE PARTNERS
Värde Partners is a USD 13 billion global
alternative investment firm that employs a
value-based approach to investing across
a broad array of geographies, segments
and asset types, including real estate,
corporate credit, mortgages, specialty
finance, real assets and infrastructure.
The firm sponsors and manages a family
of private investment funds with a global
investor base that includes foundations
and endowments, pension plans, insurance
companies, other institutional investors
and private clients. Founded in 1993,
Värde employs more than 300 people
globally with regional headquarters in
Minneapolis, London and Singapore.
For more information about Värde,
please visit: www.varde.com.

Altico Capital India Limited
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FINANCIAL PARAMETERS
LOAN BOOK (` CRORE)

GROSS DISBURSEMENT (` CRORE)

6,266

4,084

2,751
3,675

1,310

1,592
515

565
FY15
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LEVERAGE (` CRORE)

GROSS INCOME (` CRORE)

952

4,182

588
1,843
262
94
FY17

FY18

FY15

PAT (` CRORE)

FY16

FY17

FY18

ROE (%)

355

14.4%
12.5%

271
10%
8%
145
62

FY15

FY16

40.72

%
CAPITAL ADEQUACY

FY17

FY18

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18

CREDIT RATING
LONG-TERM CREDIT RATING OF “AA-”;
OUTLOOK STABLE BY INDIA RATINGS AND
RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED (“FITCH”)
SHORT-TERM CREDIT RATING OF “A1+” BY
FITCH AND ICRA LIMITED

Altico Capital India Limited

7

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Petty
(Chairman & Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Robert Petty is Managing Partner and Co-Founder of Clearwater Capital.
Since founding Clearwater in 2001, Mr. Petty and his partner Mr. Amit Gupta
have invested profitably across cycles, sectors and geographies, building
an Asia-focussed business that is one of the largest credit investing firms in
the region today. Over his career, Mr. Petty has focussed on Asia-dedicated
credit investments, with broad expertise in direct lending, secondary
credit and special situations strategies. Mr. Petty’s principal responsibilities
at Clearwater encompass portfolio management, origination and overall
management of the Firm. Prior to founding Clearwater, Mr. Petty worked
as a capital committer in Asian credit for fifteen years at Lehman Brothers
and Peregrine Fixed income, before moving to the investment side of the
business working for Marc Lasry at Amroc Investments for three years.
Mr. Petty sits on the Board of three Clearwater portfolio companies and also
serves as Chair of the Boards of two non-profit organisations, The Emerging
Markets Private Equity Association (EMPEA) and EngenderHealth. Mr. Petty
holds a bachelor of arts degree in Political Science from Brown University
and is based in Hong Kong with his wife and they have three adult children.
Mr. Amit Gupta is Partner and Co-Founder of Clearwater LLC, and a
member of Clearwater’s Investment and Management Committees. His
principal responsibilities include credit research, due diligence, analysis
and valuation.

Mr. Amit Gupta
(Non-Executive Director)

Throughout his nearly 26-year investment career, Mr. Gupta has been
on the forefront of credit analysis and deal execution in Asia. His prior
experience includes key positions at Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLC, Peregrine
Fixed Income Limited. and ICICI Limited. Mr. Gupta is a postgraduate
from IIM-Calcutta and holds an engineering degree in Electronics and
Communications from IIT-Roorkee.

Mr. Mark Nicholas Cutis was Chief Investment Officer at Abu Dhabi
Investment Council since joining it in 2008. Having worked for global
investment banks in various capacities, he has gained extensive
experience in proprietary trading, both on the buy side as well as the sell
side. His experience spans key positions at Shinsei Bank, Athene Holding
Limited., Lalpir Power Limited. (formerly, AES Lalpir (Pvt) Limited.)
and Pakgen Power Limited. Mr. Cutis holds a BA in Economics from
Emory University and an MBA from the Wharton School of Business
at the University of Pennsylvania.
Mr. Mark Cutis
(Non-Executive Director)

(ceased w.e.f. July 5, 2018)
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(Non-Executive Director)

Prior to joining Värde, he was an Investment Banking Associate at Bear
Stearns, London, and worked as an Investment Banking Analyst at Bear
Stearns, New York.
Mr. Haroon is graduated from the University of Pennsylvania with a B.A. in
Economics and received an M.B.A. from INSEAD, France.

Ms. Subhashree Dutta
(Non-Executive Director)

Ms. Subhashree Dutta is a member of Clearwater’s Investment and
Management Committees and is responsible for overseeing credit analytics.
In her 27-year career, she has been involved in numerous restructurings,
with experience across diverse sectors in Asia, Australia and Europe. In
her previous stint with ICICI Limited, she was largely focussed on credit
underwriting and relationship management, besides being engaged in
performing workout and settlements for large accounts. She helped
establish Clearwater’s office in Mumbai and has worked at the firm’s Hong
Kong and New York offices. Ms. Dutta is a postgraduate from IIM-Calcutta,
besides being a CFA charter holder and a graduate of the Institute of Cost
and Works Accountants of India.

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang joined Clearwater in 2008 and is a member of the firm’s
Investment and Management committees. Based in Singapore, he oversees
Clearwater’s business and operating platforms, and is responsible for the
firm’s risk management and portfolio hedging strategies. He also plays a
lead role in the institutionalisation of the firm’s organisational processes
and infrastructure, besides monitoring global macro trends and the impact
of current events on Asian markets. His previous stints were with Cargill
Financial Services Asia and Black River Asset Management (Asia), prior
to which he worked at CIBC World Markets. Dr. Chiang holds a Master and
Doctorate degree in Economics from Princeton University.
Dr. Yao Chye Chiang
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Rahul Merchant is Senior Executive Vice President, Head of Client
Services and Technology at TIAA. He has more than 30 years of public and
private sector experience as a transformation leader, including expertise
in business, technology, operations and private equity. He earlier ran his
own advisory firm, prior to which he was Citywide Chief Information
and Innovation Officer for the City of New York, besides having held
key positions at Fannie Mae, Merrill Lynch, Dresdner Bank, Sanwa Bank
and Copper Neff and Associates. Mr. Merchant holds a B.Sc. in Electrical
Engineering from Bombay University, an M.Sc. in Computer Science from
Memphis State University, and an MBA from Temple University.
Mr. Rahul Merchant
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Altico Capital India Limited
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Mr. Ali Haroon

Prior to moving to New York, he was based in Singapore where he led
Värde’s business in Asia and helped grow the firm’s presence in the region.
His responsibilities in real estate include Värde’s commercial real estate
credit and hard asset business as well as its residential land development
activities. Before moving to Asia, he previously worked in Värde’s London
office with a focus on European real estate investments and commercial
mortgage-backed securities.

II

Mr. Ali Haroon is a Partner and Head of Real Estate of Varde Partners
in North America and Asia. He is a member of the firm’s Investment
Committee. Based in New York, he joined the firm in 2005.

Mr. Stephen Marzo
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

Mr. Stephen Marzo has over 35 years of experience in financial management
at various financial institutions, as well as commodity trading and resource
investment companies. His global experiences include work in New York,
London, Taiwan, and Singapore and for the past 24 years in Hong Kong.
His previous work experience includes 9 years with Chase Manhattan in
corporate banking, 5 years as International Treasurer for Phibro Energy
Inc and 6 years as head of credit for Asia for Bear Stearns (Asia) LLC and
Goldman Sachs Asia LLC. In Hong Kong, his positions have also included
Group CFO of the Noble Group Limited (until 2011) and CFO of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx). In recent years, Mr. Marzo
began his own consulting firm, Baxter Coudert Capital Limited, focussing
on the financial, real estate and resource sectors. Mr. Marzo also serves
on several boards and frequently chairs key board committees. Mr. Marzo
holds a B.Sc. in Business Administration from Georgetown University in
Washington DC, USA.
Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai retired as Executive Director on the Board of
HSBC Asia Pacific and Chairperson of India after a 13-year stint.
Before joining HSBC, she was Vice Chairperson and Head Investment
Banking at JM Morgan Stanley and was responsible for directing the
operations of the Investment Bank in India. She is on the Board of Larsen
& Toubro, Advent Private Equity, Nestle SA, Cipla Limited, Max Financial
Services Limited., besides being Chairperson of South Asia Harvard
Business School. A past President of FICCI, she is currently involved with
several Industry Associations. Ms. Kidwai has an MBA degree from Harvard
Business School, Boston, Massachusetts.

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Borja Cuellar is head of Special Situations – Real Estate, at Abu Dhabi
Investment Council (ADIC). He joined ADIC in 2013. Prior to joining ADIC,
Mr.Cuellar spent six years at Private Equity fund Citi Venture Capital
International. Prior to that, he worked at the Leveraged Finance department
of Lehman Brothers. Mr. Cuellar started his professional career in
management consulting. Mr.Cuellar graduated from Universidad Pontificia
de Comillas-ICADE (Madrid, Spain) with a B.A. in Business Administration
and a B.A. in Law, and received an M.B.A. from Columbia University
(New York, USA)
Mr. Francisco Borja Cuellar
(Non-Executive Director)

(appointed w.e.f. July 6, 2018)
Mr. Akihito Watanabe is a Managing Director in Varde and is responsible
for real estate related investments in Asia-Pacific, primarily focused
on the Japanese market. Based in Tokyo, he joined the firm in 2009.
Prior to joining Värde, Akihito spent five years at Lehman Brothers as an
associate responsible for distressed real estate related credit and equity
investments, as well as advising on capital markets and M&A transactions
for REITs, funds and companies across the real estate sector.

Mr. Akihito Watanabe
(Alternate Non-Executive

Director to Mr. Ali Haroon)
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Mr. Akihito graduated from Johns Hopkins University in Baltimore,
Maryland with a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering and received his Master of
International Affairs in International Finance and Business from Columbia
University, School of International and Public Affairs.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
Dear Stakeholders,
Against the backdrop of a pick-up in the global
economy and vibrant GDP growth in India, it gives
me great pleasure to present to you our annual report
for FY 2018.
The past fiscal year has seen the implementation of
significant policy changes and reforms across both the
industrial and social sectors of the country. Initiatives
like the introduction of GST, the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code (IBC), Direct Benefit Transfer
(DBT) and bank recapitalisation, along with multipronged efforts to boost financial inclusion, will have
a considerable affirmative impact on economic growth
in general and more specifically, the progress of the
financial services sector. With all these initiatives
delivering results over the short to medium term, India’s
growth momentum is expected to continue, with a
forecast of 7.4% for FY 2018-19, despite the weakening
rupee, rising oil prices and a potential reversal
of capital flows.
Within this evolving economic scenario, the NBFC
sector has emerged as a change agent as well as
a beneficiary of the transformation taking place.
The assets and deposits of NBFCs have been growing
exponentially and so have their disbursements. In
the next few years, the sector is expected to grow
at the annual rate of 20% (CRISIL). The Government
and RBI have begun to facilitate this sector with an
appropriate policy environment as they acknowledge
NBFCs as powerful vehicles for delivering financial
services, especially to those segments that are
underserved by the banking sector. For instance,
within the total financing to real estate developers of
` 4 lakh crore, banks have an exposure of ` 1.8 lakh
crore and NBFCs and housing finance companies
contribute ` 2.2 lakh crore.

Altico Capital continues to
execute its business vision and
perform strongly to realise 2020
business goals. Financing India’s
future remains at the heart of
what we do.
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The real estate sector in India has immense potential
for
development,
especially
now
that
the
Government has begun to promote housing for all
and is undertaking various infrastructure initiatives.
Most importantly, with the implementation of
RERA, the entire sector has become more
regulated and transparent and the interests of real
estate developers, property purchasers and real
estate funding institutions have been protected.
As a result, post a period of rather sluggish growth
in the real estate sector, some green shoots are
finally beginning to emerge. After eight quarters of

II

At the same time, some challenges, such
as transient sluggish sales and cash flow
mismatches, persist in the real estate sector.
Further, financial market regulations are
getting more stringent. While we expect
these external factors to continue to pose
a challenge for the sector in the near and
possibly medium term, we have factored
them into our business plan. With our
strong balance sheet, deep shareholders
commitment and large scale of business,
we view these challenges as an opportunity
for Altico’s growth within the still nascent
NBFC sector.
Altico Capital is well poised to tap this
immense opportunity in the real estate space
with the strong capital base that results from
its steadfast sponsors and varied lender base
with several marquee institutions offering
lines of credit. Side by side, our strategic asset
management architecture, robust operational
risk framework, multi-pronged liquidity
management, innovative use of technology
and stringent corporate governance norms
ensure strong underwriting abilities and
operational excellence.
As
the
macro
environment
remains
favourable, we believe that structural
opportunities for NBFCs continue to be
strong in the coming years. Real estate has
emerged as one of the most attractive asset

class. Further, structural changes in the
economy and the real estate sector, that bring
in transparency and improved access to
formal funding, will present opportunities to
corporate developers. With our core focus
on senior secured lending to mid-income
residential projects and to the commercial
real estate sector across most Tier-1 cities in
India, we will continue to partner with leading
real estate developers. Altico Capital has
successfully diversified its portfolio across
the full range of real estate opportunities and
indeed, related logistics and infrastructure
projects have become attractive for us. We
will continue to seek opportunities to diversify
further in conformity with its business
objective and vision of providing financial
solutions backed by strong collaterals and
healthy cash flow.
Altico Capital continues to execute its
business vision and perform strongly to
realise 2020 business goals. Financing India’s
future remains at the heart of what we do.
We continue to follow our business philosophy
which entails diversification, selective lending
and stringent asset monitoring. Actual cash
realisations exceed contractual cash flows
demonstrating high underwriting standards
and focussed asset management efforts.
Most importantly, we have achieved a
robust organisational set-up with rigorous
corporate governance.
With this blueprint ahead of us and with
another successful and high growth
year accomplished, I would like to take
the opportunity to thank our talented,
experienced and focussed people at Altico
Capital. It is their unstinted efforts and
commitment that are reflected in Altico
Capital’s growth and progress. I would also
like to thank our financial partners and
lenders for their confidence in us. Last, but
not the least, I am grateful to our customers
for selecting Altico Capital as a financing
partner. With the conviction and contribution
of all our stakeholders, we look forward to
fulfilling our mission of Financing India’s
Future.

Robert D Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Altico Capital India Limited
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minimal new launches, there have been
some successful ones lately. Stalled Joint
Development Agreements (JDAs) and
negotiations for development that were
put on hold due to the uncertainty caused
during the implementing phases of RERA
and GST have resumed substantially, as
developers have largely adapted to the
RERA regime. Many land owners are now
willing sellers and customer enquiry levels
at projects have improved towards the end
of FY 2018, over and above the pick-up in
sales. With the implementation of RERA,
there has been a greater focus on projects
and the quality of data emerging from them
is expected to improve. The appetite to fund
real estate projects continues to be strong
though developer selectivity has increased.
Land acquisitions have commenced, at more
attractive prices.

MESSAGE FROM THE CEO
Dear Stakeholders,
Altico Capital has come a long way in the past few
years. In FY 2014, we set out with a distinct focus
on lending backed by real estate assets, as this
segment offered an optimal risk:return trade-off and
growth. We tied into senior secured loans, with strong
underlying assets and resourceful counterparties. Over
the past five years, supported by favourable macro
environment and adhering to our lending philosophy,
core systems and processes and corporate governance
framework, we have successfully achieved segmental
and geographic extension, rewarding our shareholders,
in the process.
Founded on the nucleus of strengths and professional
experience, we have a robust well-diversified,
de-risked, value-focussed business model. Our 360
degree business strategy has resulted in a high cash
generative business model with moderate leverage
and a significant cushion, due to the focus on ROE. By
2015, capitalising on the market opportunity, we had
a balance sheet size of USD 172 million and a ROE of
between 8-10%. We then worked on building scale and
enterprise and our balance sheet increased to USD 617
million and our ROE climbed to ~12.5% by FY 2017.
Fiscal 2018 was the year of highest realisations and
deployment. Our balance sheet soared to ` 6,829 crore
and our ROE stood at 14.4%. Our loan book has grown
70% (y-o-y) to reach ` 6,266 crore, while our gross
disbursements crossed ` 4,084 crore. Our cost of debt
fell marginally to 10.4% from 10.6% in the previous year
and our capital adequacy stood at a robust 40.72%.
Our gross income has increased to ` 952 crore and our
PAT stood at ` 355 crore.

As Altico Capital grows, we
continue to diversify on various
fronts to insure insulation
from any adverse economic or
regulatory developments that
may impact segments of our
external environment.
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As Altico Capital grows, we continue to diversify on
various fronts to insure insulation from any adverse
economic or regulatory developments that may impact
segments of our external environment. At the same time
this expansion enables to explore fresh opportunities
for growth. Our geographic diversification conforms to
a well-structured strategy to forge a presence in major
metros across India. Where our assets are concerned,
we have diversified from merely residential into

II

Towards buttressing our internal strengths, we
have systems, processes, policies and a corporate
governance framework that underline the strategic
interplay of our deep domain understanding of the
real estate sector financial markets. These have infused
transparency and accountability, while facilitating
timely compliances across the spectrum. Further,
our enterprise build-up initiatives have increased
operational efficiencies, helped in faster and better
credit underwriting, superior asset management
through various scorecards and models, efficient
collection tracking, holistic project monitoring and
enhanced data and risk analytics capabilities.
Looking ahead, we believe that the time has come for
us to ride on our enterprise and platform to grow and
expand further. Once again, we seek to realise these
parameters by tapping our internal strengths and
enjoying tailwinds of growth that is imminent in the
Indian economy. We will continue to strategically focus
on strengthening our footprints in the Real Estate
sector through further diversification into a few other
cities and seek funding opportunities in other segments
of Real Estate. Over time and as opportunities present
themselves, we also plan to foray into non-real estate
sectors that have hard collaterals and cash flow
backed security, more specifically those related to
infrastructure. Some allied sectors where we believe
there will be significant opportunities in India include
warehousing, logistics, health and education.

Corporate Overview

commercial real estate, as well, which is considered
credit positive. Towards catering to various segments,
we are prudently funding a blend of genres of real estate
projects, considering various demand parameters
including affordability. The affordable housing and
IT/IT-SEZ in our portfolio qualify as infrastructure
lending, according to RBI’s norms, delivering us a
lending edge. Further, in line with our intention to
diversify across sectors and in anticipation of demand
trends, we increased our preparedness to fund not
only real estate but allied sectors as well. I am happy to
share that we have successfully commenced funding
in the infrastructure space. We aim to broaden our
products offerings to include Mezzanine and structured
lending, project financing and working capital term
loans in the coming months.

ASSET DIVERSIFICATION:
Our exposure in the
commercial sector increased
from Nil to 21% in 18 months.
DIVERSIFICATION ACROSS
SEGMENTS:
39% Mid-Income Group,
24% Affordable, 37% Others
RBI COMPLIANT
INFRASTRUCTURE:
Affordable housing and
IT/IT-SEZ account for 29%
of our exposure.
REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
STANDARDS:
We have a majority of our
portfolio under the ambit
of regulatory and registered
under RERA.

Altico Capital India Limited
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FUNDED 96 PROJECTS
ACROSS 07 CITIES

96 MILLION SQ FT FUNDED

(As of March 31, 2018)

Our focus in FY 2019 will be on
institutionalisation of asset management
practices, creating a detailed Enterprise
Risk Management Framework and its
implementation and relooking at policies and
procedures in the light of business growth
and diversification.
As always, we acknowledge that our
greatest strength and source of growth
is our people. We will continue to nurture
our qualified workforce, which is led by a
far-sighted Board of Directors and backed
by shareholders which display deep
commitment to our goals. Retaining this
pool of people resources is aligned to
our business goals in steering our growth
strategy as we take on new opportunities.
I take this opportunity to thank them for
their hard work and professional approach,
which is crucial to our organisation’s
future endeavours.
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As we continue to focus on Financing India’s
Future, we remain committed to delivering
increasing value to our stakeholders.
Through superior underwriting capabilities,
we continue to set industry benchmarks of
excellence, which give us a strong presence
in the industry. We are confident that backed
by superior liability and liquidity management
practices, we strive to maintain a risk-free
lending environment. While riding on our
robust asset management architectural
framework, we can garner growth momentum
and deliver alpha.
While FY 2018 has been a landmark year
in many ways, we seek to identify further
opportunities and have excitedly forayed into
FY 2019, with the support and guidance of
our financial sponsors, members of the Board
and in-house Management committees,
clients and employees. With their support
and encouragement, we look forward
to continuing on our path of Financing
India’s Future.
Thank you,
Sanjay Grewal
Chief Executive Officer
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GEOGRAPHIC DIVERSIFICATION

Noida
Gurugram

9%

24%

Pune

16%

Hyderabad

7%
Mumbai

27%
Bengaluru

9%

Chennai

8%
Map not to scale. For illustration purpose only.
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BUILDING A STRONG AND
SUSTAINABLE FOUNDATION
We have a robust value matrix of fundamental strengths which forms the
backbone of our enterprise. It is the foundation on which our strategic
business blueprint has been crafted and defines various critical processes
which facilitate prudent credit lending decisions and asset management
strategies within the organisation, making them efficient and effective.

PILLARS OF VALUE CREATION

Asset & Risk
Management

Liability Management
Framework

Corporate
Governance

Enterprise – People,
Technology & Policy
and Processes

ASSET & RISK MANAGEMENT
We have crafted a unique Asset Management
Architectural framework to institute robust
systems and processes which infuses
transparency and accountability, while
facilitating timely compliances across the
spectrum.
The central facets of the architecture
encompass

Underwriting Expertise
We have in place robust underwriting
standards,
supported
by
the
deep
domain knowledge and experience of our
management and department heads. These
standards, supplemented by the guidance
of our expert Board of Directors and their
engagement in Credit Committee decisions,
lend further strength to our asset quality.

Credit Risk
Management

Underwriting
Expertise

Asset
Monitoring
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Credit
Evaluation

Credit
Approval

Credit
Monitoring

II

We carefully select deals that offer a
combination of strong developer credentials
and project strengths. Our qualified and
experienced teams undertake a meticulous
study of underlying assets (real estate
type, location, project purpose, title and
approvals, constructability and costs, breakeven points, etc.), as well as the credentials
of the borrowers against various parameters.
All deals are systematically vetted before
approval and execution.

Quantity

Quality

Four pillars of
the Liquidity
Management
Framework

Efficiency

Contingency

Risk Management Practices
Our rigid credit risk governance processes
form the backbone of our risk management
practices. The overall risk strategy is defined
by the Board of Directors and the credit
approval authority is allocated to Credit
Committee through a Credit Committee
Charter and Credit Policy. After each
disbursement, monitoring of the loan
progress is conducted by dedicated team of
credit, legal and technical experts, with great
responsibility and commitment. This team is
supported by a sound asset management
practices while leveraging an IT platform to
monitor asset quality and bring out early
warnings in real time, leading to proactive
resolutions. This multi-layered yet integrated
approach assures that risks are well analysed
and managed.
Risk mitigation is further done through
diversification, selective lending, downside
thinking along with rigorous monitoring of
assets. Stringent control is maintained on
cash flows, with all receivables preserved
in escrow.
With a highly collateralised credit strategy
and strong underwriting criteria, we have the
distinction of maintaining a successful track
record of returns and cash realisations even
under challenging macro environments.
All this has culminated in Altico Capital being
recognised as a reliable partner in the Indian
real estate credit lending business, with nil
Gross and Net NPAs.

LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK
We
have
crafted
an
intricate
and
interdependent framework for liquidity
management, which enables us to expand in
a sustainable manner, with superior practices
that endorse both efficiency and contingency
measures.
The strengthening of these four pillars of its
framework – Quantity, Quality, Efficiency and
Contingency – are observed in our actions,
progress and performance over the past
financial year.
Quantity
We have increased the source of our capital
base. From being funded by our sponsors’
funds until FY 2016, we have gradually
increased our leverage. By the end of
FY 2018, our liabilities amounted to ` 4,182
crore, considerably higher than the FY 2017
year-end figure of ` 1,843 crore. While this
has given rise to an increase in our Debt:
Equity ratios, these benchmarks of leverage
are still lower than the industry average,
leaving scope for further leveraging within
our overarching principle of prudence.
FY 2018

FY 2017

Gross Debt:
Equity Ratio

1.6x

0.8x

Net Debt:
Equity Ratio

1.4x

0.7x

Altico Capital India Limited
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Asset Monitoring

Quality
We have also broadened our lender base by
forging debt relationships with 30 lenders in
FY 2018, from a total of 12 in FY 2017. This has
led to a diversification in our liability portfolio
and made it more broad-based. Credit lines
from term lenders now contribute 64% of
FY 2018 overall lender mix from 31% last
financial year.
The nature of our borrowings has also moved
considerably towards a greater proportion
of long-term borrowing with the Long-Term:
Short-Term ratio (on a contractual basis)
moving to 82:18 in FY 2018 from 54:46
in FY 2017.
Efficiency
The third pillar of our liquidity management
framework is efficiency. We follow a threepronged strategy to maximise efficiency
of liability management. At the most basic
level, we scrutinise the cost of borrowing to
ensure that it is minimised. Secondly, we aim
to achieve optimisation of our funding mix.
We have made progress towards optimising
covenants and reduction in credit spreads.
Lastly, we look to manage our surpluses
smartly. With high undrawn limits, in terms
of working capital and surplus over liquidity
reserves, we enjoy ample scope for enhancing
our Asset Liability Management (ALM).
Contingency
Towards strengthening our contingency
parameters, we have instituted a robust
Liquidity Reserve Policy, which provides for
the prompt repayment of all obligations, if
and when called on. In addition, we are in the
process of crafting and institutionalising a
new contingency and stress-testing discipline.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
We believe that Corporate Governance is
the cornerstone of a scalable financial and
economic system. Accordingly, we adopt the
highest governance standards and back them
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up with appropriate teams, technology and
a comprehensive suite of practices, policies
and processes.
We are characterised as a fully built
organisation with defined roles and
responsibilities
and
a
management
framework on corporate governance along
with an evaluation of the board.
Some elements of the Corporate Governance
framework are:
• During FY 2018, both the annual audits
by statutory auditors as well as bi-annual
audits by internal auditors were concluded
with no significant observations.
• The distinguished Board of Directors
oversees the experienced management
team across the spectrum of operations
through
appropriate
committee
representations.
• The policies / charters / guidelines are
fully updated as per various regulatory
/ statutory requirements and business
model.
• Our Compliance Monitoring Tool tracks
and reports regulatory compliances
across enterprise.
• We have secured an AA- long-term rating
from Fitch and the highest A1+ dual shortterm credit rating from global agencies –
Fitch & Moody’s.

ENTERPRISE – PEOPLE, TECHNOLOGY
& POLICY AND PROCESSES
People Capital
People are the heart of our enterprise
development model. We have a talented team
of people who are led by an experienced
management team with deep domain
knowledge. The management team, in turn, is
guided by a distinguished Board of Directors,
who oversee operations through strong
committee representations.

II

The intangible combination of knowledge,
insights, experience and knowhow is
supported
by
suitable
infrastructure,
processes and systems enabling us build the
foundation for long-term, strong growth.
Moving ahead, we will continue to hire high
calibre talent, coach and mentor leadership
teams and review policies to match best
industry practices and deliver scale.
Robust Technology
We have invested in building robust
technology infrastructure while developing
seamless
processing
capabilities.
This
supports and supplements our financial
operations. Moving forward, as we usher
in scale, plans are underway to strengthen
our technology platforms to move to the
best-in-class reporting, monitoring and
data sharing across the organisation. We
also plan to capture an end-to-end loan
lifecycle completely integrated with an
accounting system using straight-through
processing. Over this platform, we would be
developing various analytics and business
intelligence reporting tools and an automated
management dashboard.
Comprehensive suits of Policies, Processes
and Practices
Altico Capital has a comprehensive suite of
practices, policies and processes covering
its various business and support functions,
including Credit Policy, Asset Liability
Management Policy, Whistle Blower / Vigil

Mechanism, Code of Corporate Governance
and Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider
Trading & Corporate Disclosure Practices.
All the credit and leverage transactions
proposed are put through a structured,
rigorous approval process and final decisions
on such transactions are made by committees
of the Board operating under appropriate
delegated authority from the Board.
Loan and investment assets are continuously
monitored for contractual performance,
expected progress and their covenants and
compliances. Asset Management reviews are
formally conducted, which includes meeting
borrowers, project site visits and detailed
analysis of actual progress of projects against
budgets agreed prior.
Altico Capital has an enterprise-wise
compliance monitoring system to ensure
statutory and regulatory compliances,
borrowing covenant compliances and
compliances to Insider Trading rules.
Regular communications with various
stakeholders is maintained in the form of
fortnightly updates and monthly newsletters
to the Board of Directors, shareholders and
lenders, regular updates to rating agencies,
quarterly management presentations to
the Board etc. All policies, procedures
and guidelines are regularly revisited and
updated in the light of business growth,
regulatory changes and management and
governance requirement.
The focus in FY 2019 will be on the
strengthening and upgradation of Asset
Management and creating a more detailed
Enterprise Risk Management Framework
in keeping with business growth planned
for the future.

Altico Capital India Limited
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Our well-defined organisation framework
helps define and demarcate the responsibility
and accountability across the organisational
hierarchy while fostering a strong culture
of professionalism and collaboration, trust
and commitment.

CONTRIBUTING TO
COMMUNITY
THE DETAILS ON THE PROJECT
THAT ALTICO CAPITAL SUPPORTED
THROUGH CSR.

NO. OF CHILDREN: 309

NGO - Akanksha

STUDENT RETENTION: 97%

Project Supported: The School project - DN
Nagar Mumbai Public School

STUDENT ATTENDANCE: 91%

School Leader: Sheetal Murudkar - Sheetal
led 4 new Akanksha kindergarten schools
in 2012 before taking over this role at D.N.
Nagar Mumbai Public School. She was also a
Pre-Primary Coordinator. She has been a
fellow at the India School Leadership Institute
(ISLI) in FY 2013-14.
About the Community: D.N. Nagar Mumbai
Public School (DNMPS) is located in the
western suburb of Mumbai, in Andheri. The
children of the D.N. Nagar Mumbai Public
School hail from the nearby communities
of Ganesh Nagar, Indra Nagar, Kapaswadi
and Four Bungalows. The parents of these
children are predominantly domestic workers,
rickshaw drivers, tailors and privately
employed as helpers. It’s a fairly stable
community where despite limited means the
parents of the kids are still highly invested
in their children. Students are helped in
developing life skills and character strengths
required to be successful.
School's Best Practices in FY 2017-18: The
school has been ensuring that there are
varied learning opportunities and thorough
forms of assessment that ensure that all
sorts of intelligences are captured. There
have been specific committees within the
school that have been focussing on each of
the SDR goals to ensure that they are being
worked on and are successful. The team has
also been streamlining their operations and
ensuring that the teachers excel at working in
a team and performing their roles.
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PARENT ATTENDANCE: 82%
TEACHERS ATTENDANCE: 95%
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NGO: GOONJ
Goonj is multi-award winning social enterprise
working pan-India to built economic bridge
between cities and villages. GOONJ focusses
on enhancing the dignity of an empowering
the communities in far-flung villages.
Altico Capital has partnered with GOONJ
and the donations made were utilised for
2 different projects
1. “School to School” total of 4,290 school
children received the study kits
2. “Sujni” total of 2,670 person days of
employment for women was created;
this project helped create 10,678 Sunjis
(home-made quilts) from 37,000 kgs of
unusable cloth.
NGO: Nanhi Kali
Project Nanhi Kali has provided 360-degree
educational support to over 3,50,000
underprivileged girls in India. The intervention
includes academic support, every school
day, through Nanhi Kali Academic Support
Centres, where trained tutors engage the
girls in concept-based learning. In addition,
a school supplies kit including a school
bag, stationery (pencils / pens / slate /
geometry box), notebooks, feminine hygiene
material and a pullover/raincoat depending
on the seasonal needs of the location.
Ever year Nanhi Kali, is helping every girl
in this programme to attend school with
dignity Funds. Altico Capital supports this
initiative and sponsors the education of
400 Nanhi Kalis at Noida and Gurugram.
NGO: Dr. Mane Medical Foundation and
Research Centre
CSR funds given by Altico Capital for
FY 2016-17 were utilised for purchase of
equipment for community-based cancer
project. That instruments are used for
screening, treatment of cancer patients
in remote villages, tribal areas of rural
Ahmednagar, with the help of this instruments
they tested 2,00,000 patients and treated
68 cancer patients.

Altico Capital India Limited

23

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
GLOBAL ECONOMY
In 2017, the global economy continued to perform well,
growing at 3.8%1 in an environment of low interest
rates, low inflation and buoyant sentiment. The second
half of the year saw an increase in investment and
economic activity across the world; recording a growth
of 4%2, the highest since 2010.
The first half of 2018 saw a tempering of the euphoria
in global markets, which was visible in 2016 and most
of 2017. The soaring valuations across asset classes
ranging from equity and bonds to property and
Bitcoins showed signs of abatement.
The US economy is showing early signs of a recovery,
with inflation contained below 2%3 and unemployment
at 4.1%. 4Third quarter GDP figures pleasantly surprised
with 3.2%5 the highest in three years pointing out to
a probable revival in the economic activity, before
dipping slightly to 2.9%6 in the last quarter of
FY 2017-18. Household income in the US continues to
expand at a moderate rate, with the fixed business
investment picking up.
While conditions remain supportive, the yield of the
10-year US Treasury bond hovers around the feared
3% mark7, signalling firming inflation in advanced
economies. There remains the chance of wage and
core inflation climbing in Europe and the US.
With the US Federal Reserve sticking to its schedule
of balance sheet normalisation, Wall Street estimates
three to four interest rate hikes in 2018 & 2019, followed
by corresponding moves by the European Central
Bank and Bank of England.
Any potential tightening of the monetary environment
in larger economies is likely to cause a drop in capital
inflows to emerging economies like India.
Global Growth projections for FY 2018-19 now stand
at 3.9%8 against the backdrop of greater financial
market volatility.
International Monetary Fund (IMF)
IMF
3
Bureau of Labour Statistics, US
4
Bureau of Labour Statistics, US
5
Bureau of Labour Statistics, US
6
Media reports

All growth projections for 2018 and beyond need to be
weighed against the risks posed by expensive equity
markets, US-China tariff war, volatile commodity prices,
a shift towards protectionist policies and any sudden
disruptions caused by geopolitical dynamics including
cyber attacks. Brent crude prices are on an upward
trajectory though still far off from its historic highs.

INDIAN ECONOMY
The Indian economy continues to perform well,
growing at 6.7% in 2018 despite temporary disruptions
triggered by the rollout and implementation of
Goods and Services Tax (GST) and subdued growth
in the agriculture & allied and industry sections
of the economy.
Investment demand as a percentage of GDP rose from
31.7% in FY 2016-17 to 32% in FY 2017-189, indicating
that the country’s economy has managed to ride out a
challenging period.
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) predicts that
the fiscal deficit will improve from 6.9% of GDP in
FY 2017-18 to 6.5% of the GDP in FY 2018-19. The
reduction in deficit due to increased GST collections,
will lead to a higher tax-to-GDP ratio.
However, the current account deficit (CAD) is expected
to move up to 2.3% of GDP10 during the current fiscal,
the highest in six years. With oil prices reigning
high, the CAD may come under further pressure.
Inflation remains a concern with consumer price
inflation projected to spurt from 3.6% in FY 2017-18 to
5.2% in FY 2018-19.11
2017 was the year of reforms with a host of initiatives
like GST, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC),
Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) and bank recapitalisation
being implemented. These reforms are expected to
be positive in the long run and contribute towards
sustainable growth of the Indian economy.
Market reports
International Monetary Fund (IMF)
9
International Monetary Fund (IMF)
10
International Monetary Fund (IMF)
11
IMF

1

7

2

8
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More and more households are moving from physical
to financial assets. The reforms and digitisation-led
shift to a formal economy, as systems and process
get institutionalised will be long-term value accretive.
Ratings agency Moody’s upgraded India’s sovereign
rating from Baa3 to Baa213, endorsing its long-term
growth potential.

Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) continue
to play a critical role in the Indian economy. With
their operational flexibility, faster turnaround time,
smaller ticket size, proactive service standards
and marketing network, they provide loans and
financing solutions to borrowers not serviced by large
Scheduled Commercial banks.
The number of NBFCs-ND stood at 11,34415 while the
number of systematically important (NBFCs-ND-SI)
stood at 220.
The contribution of NBFCs to the economy grew from
8.4% in 2006 to above 14% in March 201516. According
to a study by the Reserve Bank of India, NBFC-ND SI
share of credit provided to the commercial sector as
a percent of GDP remained steady at 7.9% at end of
March 2017.18 As per a research report published by
PwC, improving macroeconomic conditions, higher
credit penetration, increased consumption and
disruptive digital trends, will allow NBFC credit to grow
at a healthy rate of 7–10% over the next five years17.
A separate CRISIL report predicts an optimistic
growth rate of 20% for NBFCs over the next few years.
As per the Economic Survey 2017-18, the NBFC
sector accounted for 17% of bank assets and 0.26%
of bank deposits as on September 30, 2017. Loans
and advances of NBFCs registered a growth of 6.6%
during the first half of FY 2017-18, which was 12.7%
during FY 2016-17.

Looking ahead, the IMF has forecasted a growth rate
of 7.3% for 2019 and 7.5% for 2020.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) and
real estate are two niches traditionally serviced by
NBFCs through specialised and customised financial
products. To encourage NBFCs and treat them at par
with banks and insurance companies, the previous
year Union Budget allowed systematically important
NBFCs of a certain size to be classified as SEBI
designated Qualified Institutional Buyer, allowing them
to participate in Initial Public Offerings.

Job creation has been partially addressed with data
released by EPFO and NPS showing that 2.2 million14
formal jobs were created in the six months to February
2018. 2019 will be a crucial year with scheduled
general elections to be held across the country. The
present Government remains committed to sustain the
process of structural economic reform. If the current
Government returns to office, the pace of reforms
being instituted could remain on track.

Recently, there has been a spurt in NBFCs and PE
funds catering to the real estate space. According
to a recent report by Ambit Capital, the market
share of real estate developer funding by NBFCs and
HFCs has doubled in the last four years. The total
exposure of lenders to developer financing is ` 4 lakh
crore, with banks having an exposure of ` 1.8 lakh
crore19 and NBFCs and housing finance companies
contributing the rest.

12

Media reports
Moody’s Press Note
14
Media reports
15
Chapter VII–NBFCs-Report on Trend and Progress
of Banking in India, 2016-17, RBI

16

13

17

Barring unexpected changes, public spending by
the Government is expected to remain healthy in
FY 2018-19 and the focus on roads, rural development
and affordable housing is likely to continue.

PwC Research
Assocham PwC Report – NBFCs The Changing
Landscape
18
Chart No. 2-RBI Bulletin October 2017
19
Ambit BFSI-Real Estate Lending report Feb 2018
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There is finally some respite for the banking sector
which has been posting heavy losses as a result of
rising Non-Performing assets. The setting up of the
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) under IBC is
expected to speed up the process of banking sector
stress resolution, by weeding out large delinquent
accounts responsible for the erosion in the balance
sheet strengths of a number of public sector
commercial banks. The government’s plan to infuse
` 2.11 lakh crores12 (USD 32 billion) of capital raised from
recapitalisation bonds and other sources is expected
to provide for resolution of bank balance sheets and
will strengthen the credit growth. As these measures
enable banks to detoxify their balance and regain their
financial strength, they will be in a better position to
support the growth impulses in the economy.

PERFORMANCE OF THE NBFC SECTOR

II

GST which results in a single unified tax for the entire
country has the potential to revolutionise the way
business is conducted in India. It eliminates multiple
state and central taxes and simplifies the transit of
goods across the country, making it much faster. It is
expected to be beneficial for consumers in the real
estate sector as project developers should pass on the
input tax benefits to home buyers thereby bringing
down purchase prices.

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had later in 2017
declared that peer-to-peer lenders (P2P) – companies
that provide loan facilitation services from their
platform between small lenders and small borrowers –
will be treated as NBFCs.
Acknowledging the role played by NBFCs, this year’s
Union Budget 2018 stated that NBFCs can be a powerful
vehicle for delivering loans under the Micro Units
Development and Refinance Agency or MUDRA. The
refinancing policy and eligibility criteria set by MUDRA
will be reviewed to enhance refinancing of NBFCs.
By targeting financially relatively underserved
segments, through employment of technology at
all stages of operations, NBFCs will continue to play
an increasingly critical role in providing credit to
sectors of the economy most in need of it. NBFCs
that have relatively strong governance and robust
systems and processes in place are particularly poised
to grow sustainably and cement their presence
in the financial sector.

REAL ESTATE MARKET OVERVIEW
The year 2017 saw an unprecedented number of
structural changes in the economy which had a direct
impact on the real estate sector. The year saw the full
impact of demonetisation and the rollout of various
structural reforms like Goods and Services Tax (GST),
RERA, IBC, Benami Transactions Act, etc., which
made it difficult for a sector which was already facing
headwinds with slowing sales, stagnating prices,
oversupply, unaffordability, etc. Some of the interesting
trends witnessed during 2017 were as under:

Consolidation: Developers with limited track record
and/or liquidity challenges made a conscious effort
towards either selling their excess land parcels or tying
up with reputed developers under joint development/
development management model. This would result in
a win-win situation for everyone involved – developers,
customers, investors and lenders.
Slowdown in Launches: Given the market conditions
and structural changes, there were fewer project
launches in the residential space during 2017 - with
nearly 1.26 lakh housing unit launches against sales
of 2.03 lakh housing units in 2017 (Source: Anarock).
This bodes well for the sector as it will bring in some
demand-supply equilibrium, especially in markets like
Noida, Gurugram, etc. which have seen frenzied real
estate activity in the last few years.
Affordable Housing: Affordable housing continued
to receive enough support as part of the central
government’s “Housing for All” initiative with
incentives being provided to customers, developers
and lenders. The previous year witnessed increased
private sector participation in the affordable
housing space, including by large developers,
across cities – their confidence being backed by a
healthy customer response.
Commercial Office Market: The top seven cities
witnessed a decrease in new office completions
during 2017 with 26.94 mn sq ft of new office space
being completed. Demand kept up with the pace of
supply, with 28.73 mn sq ft of absorption with average
vacancies declining marginally to 14.1%. FDI investors
continue to be bullish on the commercial office market.

Flight to Quality: Potential buyers continued to sit
on the fence driven by issues like price stagnation,
oversupply, unaffordability and more importantly, the
lack of confidence in the developers’ ability to deliver a
quality product within a defined timeline. While a lot of
developers have experienced subdued sales, some of
the large reputed developers, especially those borne
out of corporate houses, continue to demonstrate
healthy sales at reasonable prices.

FDI: International investors continue to invest in India
as local developers partner with global real estate
companies. Last three years have seen record private
equity inflow into the sector and likely to grow at
10% to reach USD 100 billion by 2026, with Tier 1 and
2 cities being the prime beneficiaries of it. India saw
private equity investments of USD 42 billion into the
real estate space in the twelve years from 2006 to 2017.

RERA: Under RERA, developers are not allowed to sell
without approvals and registration with RERA. This
resulted in an across the board delay in sales launches
and postponement of sales and collections.

While the short-term impact of the structural reforms
implemented in 2017 has been acute, these reforms
are significantly positive for the sector from a longterm perspective. In summary, the key demand
drivers seem to be still intact – what has been affected
is the sentiment.

GST: The erstwhile VAT & Service Tax were replaced
by GST of 12% on under construction real estate,
thereby increasing the cost of homes by 5-7% of sales
value. This has had a significant impact on sales of
under-construction residential real estate. Developers
were forced to bear the incremental tax or introduce
incentive schemes to sweeten the deal for buyers.
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Outlook for 2018:

The successful implementation of RERA should lead to
the return of buyers in the market with more confidence.
However, homebuyers are increasingly focussing on
the developers’ track record while evaluating projects.
Given the high GST rate and current state of risk

We have been focussing on primarily making ring
fenced asset level investments with developers
who have a strong market reputation and execution
track record. Our investment assumptions remain
conservative with cautious sales estimates over the
next couple of years. Further, we continue to actively
interact with our investee companies and provide
value-added inputs in terms of project management,
reporting, branding and sales.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW & STRATEGY
Altico Capital India Limited, an RBI registered
systemically important non-deposit NBFC, was
incorporated in 2004 by Clearwater Capital Partners
LLC. The initial mandate of Clearwater Capital Partners
India Private Limited (CCPIL) was to facilitate wholesale
lending to capital-constrained businesses in the Indian
small and medium scale sector.
In FY 2015, Abu Dhabi Investment Council (ADIC) and
Värde Partners (Värde) came in as a new investors via
the Singapore-based holding SPV. CCPIL was then
rebranded as Altico Capital India Private Limited, an
India-focussed credit platform with a USD 300 million
(` 2,000 crore) committed equity capital and the
Company’s business strategy shifted to asset-backed
senior secured lending.
In November 2017, Altico Capital converted to a Public
Limited Company and was renamed Altico Capital
India Limited.
The Company’s loan book grew 70% year-on-year
from ` 36,752 million in FY 2017 to ` 62,656 million
in FY 2018 and demonstrated a compounded annual
growth of 123% since FY 2015 i.e., from the adoption
of a new business model. The balance sheet (including
undrawn lines) grew from ` 44,208 million in 2017 to

This year clocked highest realisations and deployment,
while gross disbursements grew from ` 30,231 million in
FY 2017 to ` 40,838 million in FY 2018, a CAGR of 99%
since FY 2015 . The total number of loan sanctions rose
from 24 in FY 2017 to 57 in FY 2018, with a transaction
value of ` 64,510 million in FY 2018 compared to
` 35,110 million the previous year.
The Company raised liquidity from diversified sources
with its total leverage growing from ` 18,430 million in
FY 2017 to ` 41,816 million in FY 2018, a growth of 127%
in two years. The number of lenders rose from 12 in
FY 2017 to 30 in FY 2018.
Gross income has grown from ` 5,882 million in
FY 2017 to ` 9,518 million in FY 2018, a growth of 62%.
The Company’s Profits after Tax (PAT), grew from
` 2,708 million in FY 2017 to ` 3,550 million in FY 2018.
Return on equity grew significantly from 12.5% in
FY 2017 to 14.4% in FY 2018.
Underpinning its financial performance is the
Company’s proven policy of lending only when
backed by appropriate and tangible collateral. The
Company focusses on senior secured loans with
strong underlying assets which has resulted in a
high cash-generative business model with moderate
leverage and a significant cushion for ensuring asset
quality. Specialised domain knowledge with strong
underwriting capabilities and local partnerships with
promoters and developers has helped Altico Capital to
optimise its relationships with developers and identify
strong underlying assets.
The Company has instituted robust systems for risk
mitigation through diversification, selective lending
and rigorous asset monitoring.
Optimistic on the long-term prospects for India real
estate sector, the Company foresees the demand for
quality and mid-income affordable housing to continue
as the socio-economic drivers like urbanisation, nuclear
families, demographic divide and job creation continue
to make their presence felt.
The Company plans to leverage its expertise and
knowledge of lending to Indian real estate sector
participants, to additionally provide structured finance
solutions to adjacent sectors like logistics, warehousing,
healthcare and education.

GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE
Staffed with seasoned professionals with an in-depth
knowledge of local market conditions and on-ground
realities, Altico Capital spends considerable time
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Developers would also make a conscious effort to
make units more affordable by reworking project
specifications, unit sizes, price cuts, etc. Affordable
housing is expected attract greater interest from
developers and financial institutions alike. Given the
structural reforms, overall investor confidence is also
likely to improve, resulting in the inflow of institutional
capital. The year 2018 will likely see developers raising
equity from public markets by way of IPOs & REITs.

` 70,474 million in FY 2018, recording a year-on-year
growth of 59%.

II

aversion, several homebuyers would also prefer late
stage or ready to move in projects. In the pre-RERA
environment, collections from sales could take care of
a significant part of the construction cost of a building,
developers will now need to rely more on institutional
capital and use advanced construction technologies
for faster execution. HFCs & NBFCs shall continue to
play a dominant role in addressing the financing needs
of the real estate sector.

researching and developing networks in every city it
operates in. It is very selective about the geography
it operates in and continuously assesses the dynamic
potential of every market, mapping them to the
Company’s core competencies.
Focussing on Tier 1 cities it operates in NCR (comprising
primarily Delhi, Gurugram, Noida, Greater Noida),
Mumbai Metropolitan Region (“MMR”), Bengaluru,
Pune, Chennai and Hyderabad. Geographically, its
presence is heavier in the northern and western
regions of India.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
NBFCs as a segment continue to increase their lending
to the real estate sector. According to a research
report by India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra), while
the overall real estate loan book expanded at a
compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of about 15%
over FY 2014 - 9MFY 2018, the Real Estate (RE)-NBFC
book expanded at a CAGR of 60.9% in the similar
period. Ind-Ra expects the share of NBFCs to reach
17.8% of the formal RE funding market by FY 2020,
which is estimated in December 2017 at ` 5.2 trillion
from the current market share of 13.7%.
The share of commercial bank’s lending to the real
estate sector is expected to decline from 77.1% to
63.4% over the same period.
Competition amongst NBFC lenders is increasing,
as companies take advantage of their flexibility
to structure loans, still-attractive yields and
competitive credit costs to grow their business.
Ind-Ra states that over the last eight quarters; yield
for projects with similar risk profiles have fallen by
150-250 basis points.
Prudence needs to be exercised by NBFCs entering
the segments of land-stage financing and early-stage
financing. A report by Ambit states: seasoning and
tenure of loans, city-wise and developer-wise exposure
and yield on loans show that NBFCs/HFCs have
significantly riskier real estate loan books than banks.
As per loan sanctioned data, provided by Propstack,
56% of developer loans have been sanctioned over the
last 30 months.
Rising bond yields in the coming months may further
impact margins and asset quality, accentuating the
asset liability mismatch.
The implementation of RERA and GST imposes
restriction on pre-launch sales, requiring longer tenure
lending, as cash flows commence only on completion
of the project. Smaller developers who are dependent
on pre-sales proceeds for project funding, are likely to
come under pressure.
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Both real estate and adjacent sectors remain exposed
to risks from fluctuating business cycles, changes in
government legislation and the vagaries of interest
rate cycles.
Altico Capital remains convinced that the sweeping
structural changes introduced by the Government will
prove in the long run to be beneficial for consumers,
property developers and investors. Indian real estate
is being gradually bought in line with international
standards and practices, ushering in a period
which will see creation of more affordable housing,
easier flow of capital and removal of bottlenecks
in project implementation.
Increased transparency and institutionalisation of the
real estate space is expected to prove advantageous
to Altico Capital. Formal documentation, adoption of
formal financing channels and structured business will
enable the Company to accurately assess opportunities,
monitor progress and ensure that delinquencies are
kept at a minimum.
With its prestigious pedigree, deep domain knowledge
and robust risk management systems and processes,
it is uniquely placed to take advantage of all emerging
opportunities. In the coming years, these will provide
the Company with a competitive advantage in terms of
identification of potential partners, selection of viable
locations and projects and faster execution ability.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
During the financial year under review, the Company
continued its focus on its lending activities which
offered higher yields on senior secured basis.
For the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the
Company’s total revenue was ` 9,518 million as against
` 5,882 million for FY 2017. The total expenditure,
including interest cost, for FY 2018 was ` 4,071 million
as against ` 1,719 million for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017. The Profit before Tax for Altico Capital
grew from ` 4,163 million in FY 2017 to ` 5,447 million
in FY 2018.
The Company’s net profit after tax for FY 2018 is
` 3,550 million as against ` 2,708 million for FY 2017.
An amount of ` 710 million (Previous Year: ` 542
million) has been transferred to a Special Reserve
Fund, pursuant to the requirement of Section 45-IC of
the RBI Act, 1934.
The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on March
31, 2018 stood at ` 26,076 million resulting in 15.52%
increase over the previous year.

The Company’s capital adequacy ratio was 40.72%
as at March 31, 2018, which is significantly above the
threshold limit of 15% as prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India (RBI).

During the year under review, the Company retained
the following ratings from India Ratings and Research
(Fitch Group) for the ongoing debt programme of the
Company:
•

Long-term credit rating of “AA-”; Outlook Stable
by India Ratings and Research Private Limited
(“FITCH”)

•

Short-term credit rating of “A1+” by Fitch and ICRA
Limited

The Company also received PP-MLD AA- emr (Stable)
from India Ratings for its market-linked debentures.
The credit profile draws comfort from the support
of the marquee investors and their commitment to
the entity in the medium term. The rating mentioned
above reflects the Company’s robust capitalisation,
conservative leverage philosophy and prudent liquidity
management policy.
The rating team also draws comfort from the
management team’s experience in managing wholesale
credit and the sound risk management systems and
processes which are already in place.
Subsequent to the year under review, both the rating
agencies have reaffirmed their respective ratings for
the ongoing debt programme of the Company.

LIQUIDITY AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
The Company follows stringent asset liability
management norms based on four pillars of quantity,
quality, efficiency and contingency.
Adequate liquidity is provided for with debt outstanding
rising from ` 18,430 million in FY 2017 to ` 41,816 million
in FY 2018. The Company has adequate pipeline deals
to meet its asset growth projections.
In the backdrop of its parent support and deep
experience in managing wholesale credit, the Company
is able to get a fair share of its long-term liability
with the share of such loans/NCD, growing from
31% in FY 2017 to 64% in FY 2018. Dependence on

Contingency planning continues to be a key
pillar for the Company through a robust liquidity
reserve requirement of 6 months of cover of its
debt repayment obligations and operational expenses
and 3 months of approved deals. Altico Capital
continues to add to its liquidity buffer in line with
its business growth.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS
Altico Capital is classified as a systemically important
non-deposit accepting nonbanking financial company
and is in compliance with all applicable laws. As a
Company, Altico Capital continues to adhere to the
highest standards of risk management and governance
through ongoing investments in technology, people,
processes, marketing and brand building. It believes
in rigorous underwriting, strong documentation and a
policy of cooperative loan management.
To ensure its superior underwriting standards, it has
a robust risk management system in place which
systematically vets and assesses credit profile against
a conservative lending strategy resulting in selective
approvals. The credit policy defines the lending
rationale and establishes credit evaluation framework
and processes. It determines apt appraisal tools and
techniques to evaluate credit opportunities while
articulating an adequate credit approval process to
ensure satisfactory control over credit risk.
The business strategy as stipulated by the Board of
Directors of the Company is supported by a Credit
Committee. There is simultaneous monitoring by a legal
and operations team to ensure all checks and processes
are followed prior to the financial disbursements. To
ensure further control, a different team is responsible
for asset management and collections.

Altico Capital India Limited
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CREDIT RATING

The Long-Term: Short-Term borrowing ratio was
aligned favourably from 54:46 in FY 2017 to 84:16
in FY 2018 on a contractual basis and from 48:52
in 2017 to 62:38 in 2018 on a residual maturity
basis. Average spread out maturity rose from a
duration of 22 months in FY 2017 to 27 months in
FY 2018. In line with prudent liquidity management,
the lender base diversified over multilateral
institutions, public and private sector banks, mutual
funds and foreign banks was deepened with the
number of debt relationships rising from 12 in FY 2017
to 30 in FY 2018.

II

The Company’s gross Debt:Equity ratio as at March 31,
2018 stands at 1.6:1 and the net Debt: Equity at 1.4:1.

market instruments like Non Convertible Debentures
and Commercial Papers reduced from 69% in
FY 2017 to 36% in FY 2018.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

OUTLOOK

Information Technology (IT) forms an integral
part of business enabling drivers. To ensure bestin-class technology infrastructure and support
the business, the Company has strengthened its
IT platform by recently hiring a Chief Technology
Officer to develop an IT roadmap which shall
support Altico Capital in achieving its business
strategic vision.

Altico Capital is in the midst of executing its wellplanned strategy for the next phase of growth
and diversification. Continuing to explore new
and
emerging
opportunities
it
has
started
lending to the commercial real estate space,
which forms ~ 21% of its portfolio in addition to
its lending in the residential space as at end
March 2018.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Altico Capital has built a fully robust organisation
staffed by highly qualified and experienced managers.
During the year, senior management team got
strategically strengthened by addition of Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Human Resource Officer,
Chief Technology Officer and Head Asset Management.
As on March
50 employees.

31,

2018

the

Company

had

In the coming years, Altico Capital will continue to
finance the real estate and allied sectors including
affordable housing, warehousing and continue seek
opportunities to diversify further in conformity
with its business vision. The Company envisages
an expansion of its book-size based on its strong
credentials and proven track record. Further, it is
the preferred choice of its borrowers, due to its
capability to provide lending solutions that are
mapped to the unique requirements of its clients.
With its robust asset management, operational
risk framework, leverage architecture, human
resource pool and information technology platform,
as at end FY 2018, it is on track to achieving
its Vision – 2020.
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Directors’ Report
To
The Members of
Altico Capital India Limited (“Company”)
(formerly Altico Capital India Private Limited)
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company present their Fourteenth Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The highlights of the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year (“FY”) 2017-18 and FY 2016-17,
are as under:
[Amount in INR crores]
Particulars
As at
As at
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Total Income

951.84

588.23

Total Expenditure

407.12

171.94

544.72

416.29

186.06

146.29

Profit / (Loss) before Taxation
Less: Provision for taxation
- Current Tax
- Tax Liability of Earlier Years
- Deferred Tax Asset
Net Profit after Tax

-

1.12

3.69

(1.95)

354.97

270.83

Transfer to Reserve Fund u/s 45-IC of the RBI Act,1934

70.99

54.17

Balance brought forward from previous period

398.16

181.50

Balance carried to Balance Sheet
Earnings per share (Face Value INR 10)

682.14

398.16

Basic

7.40

5.65

Diluted

7.30

5.53

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

951.84 crore as against INR 588.23 crore for FY 206-17.

During the FY under review, the Company continued
focus on its lending activities which offered higher
yields on senior secured basis.

The total expenditure for FY 2017-18 was INR 407.12

For FY 2017-18 the Company’s total revenue was INR

as against INR 270.83 crore for FY 2016-17.

crore as against INR 171.94 crore for FY 2016-17. The
Company’s net profit for FY 2017-18 is INR 354.97 crore
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An amount of INR 70.99 crore (Previous Year: INR
54.17 crore) is transferred to Special Reserve Fund,
pursuant to the requirement of Section 45-IC of the
RBI Act, 1934.
The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on March
31, 2018 stood at INR 2,607.56 crore resulting in 15.52 %
increase over the previous year.

approval of the shareholders of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting.
Mr. Akihito Watanabe was appointed as Alternate
Non-Executive Director to Mr. Ali Haroon, NonExecutive Director with effect from June 01, 2017.
b)

Retire by Rotation
In accordance with the provisions of Section
152(6) and other applicable provisions of the
Act, Mr. Robert D Petty (DIN 00385586) and
Mr. Amit Gupta (DIN 00019529), being NonExecutive Directors of the Company, retires by
rotation and being eligible offers themselves for
re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The Board recommends their reappointment.

DIVIDEND
The Directors consider it prudent to conserve the
resources of the Company for the growth and
despite having sufficient distributable profits, do not
recommend any dividend on equity shares for FY
2017-18.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The Company’s capital adequacy ratio was 40.72%
as on March 31, 2018, which is significantly above the
threshold limit of 15% as prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI’).

The changes in the Composition of the Board
that took place during the year were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
Listing Regulations.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The operating and financial performance of the
Company has been covered in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report which forms part of
this Annual Report.

c)

Based on the declarations and confirmations
received in terms of the applicable provisions
of the Act, circulars, notifications and directions
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and other
applicable laws, none of the Directors of the
Company are disqualified from being appointed
as Directors of the Company.

During the year under review, there has been no
change in the nature of business of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
During FY 2017-18, the issued, subscribed and paidup equity share capital of the Company remain
unchanged.

The Company has received necessary declarations
from the Independent Directors, affirming
compliance with the criteria of independence laid
under the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The composition of the Board is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
(“Act”) and the rules framed thereunder, guideline(s)
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, SEBI “Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements” Regulations
2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and other applicable laws
with respect to appointment of Women Director, NonExecutive Director(s) and Independent Director(s).
a)

d)

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sanjay Grewal - Chief Executive Officer, Mr.
Dhruv Jain – Chief Financial Officer and Mr.
Binoy Parikh – Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company in terms of Section 203 of the Act.
During the year under review, the composition of
Key Managerial Personnel remain unchanged.

Appointment
During the year under review, Mr. Rahul Merchant
stepped down as Non-Executive Director
with effect from October 04, 2017. Based on
declaration/confirmation received from Mr. Rahul
Merchant, compliance with the provisions of
Section 149(6) of the Act and on recommendation
of the Nomination Committee, Mr. Merchant was
appointed as an Additional Director, designated
as “Independent Non-Executive Director” of
the Company for a period of five years with
effect from October 05, 2017. The aforesaid
appointment of Mr. Merchant is subject to the
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PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD
The Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning,
that of the Committees and of the individual Directors.
The Board, through its Nomination Committee/
Independent Directors sought feedback of the
Directors on various parameters such as:
l

l

Degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities
towards its stakeholders;
The structure, composition and role clarity of the
Board and its Committees;

l

l

Regularly and constructively attending Board
and Committee Meetings;

Adding value to the decision-making process;

l

Board/Committee culture and dynamics; and

l

Quality of relationship between Board Members
and the Management.

Evaluation of performance of all Directors’ is
undertaken annually. The Company has implemented
a system for evaluating performance of the Board, its
Committees and the individual directors on the basis of
structured questions taking into consideration various
performance related aspects.
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors,
performance of Non-Independent Directors and
performance of the Board as a whole was evaluated.
The Board have expressed their satisfaction with the
said evaluation process.

CONVERSION
FROM
PRIVATE
LIMITED
COMPANY TO PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY
During the year under review, the Company was
converted from private limited company to public
limited company vide fresh Certificate of Incorporation
dated November 22, 2017 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,
Maharashtra.

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE
During the year under review, the Company shifted its
Registered Office within the local limits i.e. from 7th
Floor, Mudra House, Opp. Grand Hyatt, Santacruz (East),
Mumbai-400055 to 21, 2nd Floor, 5 North Avenue, Maker
Maxity, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East Mumbai
400051 with effect from December 26, 2017.

TRADEMARK REGISTRATION
The Company has following registered trademarks
under Class 36 of Trademark Act, 1999:
a)

the word mark ‘Altico Capital’

b)

the logo of ‘Altico’ (with raised ‘I’)

c)

the logo with ‘Altico’ with the phrase ‘Financing
India’s Future’

HUMAN RESOURCE
During the year under review, the Company has
successfully inducted significant talent at senior and
mid level into the Company and was successful in
retaining and developing the existing human resources.

VENTURE/ASSOCIATE

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint
Venture or Associate Companies in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, and hence, disclosure
regarding the same is not applicable.
However, Clearwater Investment Advisors India Private
Limited is an Associate Company as per AS-18 and
the same is disclosed in the notes to Accounts in the
Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS
The Company being a “Non-Deposit Accepting NonBanking Financial Company” provisions of Section 73
and Section 74 of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(v) &
(vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not
applicable to the Company.
During the year under review, the Company has neither
accepted nor held any deposits from the public and
shall not accept any deposits from the public without
obtaining prior approval from the Reserve Bank of
India.

CREDIT RATINGS
During the year under review, the Company retained
the following ratings from India Ratings and Research
Private Limited (Fitch) for the ongoing debt
programme of the Company:
l

l

Long Term Debt Programme: IND AA- Outlook
Stable;
Short Term Debt Programme: IND A1+.

The Company also received PP-MLD AA- emr (Stable)
from Fitch for its market linked debentures. Further,
the Company also got itself rated from ICRA for its
short-term debt programme; the rating is ICRA A1+.
The credit profile draws comfort from the support
of the marquee investors and their commitment to
the entity in the medium term. The rating mentioned
above reflects the Company’s robust capitalisation,
conservative leverage philosophy and prudent liquidity
management policy.
The rating team also draws comfort from the
management team’s experience in managing
wholesale credit and sound risk management systems
and processes.
Subsequent to the year under review, the rating
agencies have reaffirmed the above ratings for the
ongoing debt programme of the Company.
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SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT
COMPANIES

robust learning &
the training needs
March 31, 2018 the
payroll.

II

Sharing of interpersonal relationship with the
other Directors and being supportive and cooperative;

The Company has developed a
development calendar in line with
identified for its employees. As on
Company had 50 employees on its

RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
The Company has diversified funding sources including
public sector banks, private sector banks, foreign banks,
mutual funds, Non-Banking Financial Companies and
financial institutions. During the year under review, the
Company’s Gross Leverage was increased to INR 4,182
crore from INR 1,843 crore. The funds were raised in
line with the Resource Planning Policy of the Company.

DEBT EQUITY RATIO
The Company’s Debt : Equity ratio as on March 31, 2018
stands at 1.6:1.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
In terms of Section 178 of the Act read with rules
framed thereunder and other applicable laws, the
Board has adopted, ‘Policy on Selection Criteria/ “Fit &
Proper” Person Criteria’ for appointment of Directors
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.
The details of the ‘Policy on Selection Criteria/ “Fit &
Proper” Person Criteria’ is hosted on the Company’s
website and can be viewed at http://www.alticocap.
com/fit-&-proper-criteria-policy.html.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
As required under the provisions of the Act, an extract
of the annual return in prescribed Form No. MGT-9 is
marked and annexed as Annexure A to this report.

PARTICULARS
OF
CONTRACTS
OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND
POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and
Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company
– Systematically Important Non Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended from time to
time), the Company has put in place a Board approved
Related Party Transaction Policy (“RPT Policy”) for the
purpose of obtaining requisite approval and reporting
transactions with related parties. The RPT policy is
hosted on the Company’s website and can be viewed
at http://www.alticocap.com/related-party-policy.html.
During the year under review, the Company had not
entered into related party transaction as contemplated
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act and all other
transactions entered with the related parties were in
compliance with the applicable laws.
There were no transactions with related parties which
could be considered as material in accordance with the
RPT Policy of the Company and hence no transactions
are reported in Form No. AOC-2.
However, the details of transactions with related party
as per Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Note No.
26 to the Financial Statements.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS
During the year under review, the Company had
not made any investments in terms of provisions of
Section 186(1) of the Act. The provisions of Section
186 of the Act pertaining to granting of loans to any
persons or body corporate and giving of guarantees or
providing security in connection with the loan to any
other body corporate or persons are not applicable to
the Company, since the Company is a Non-Banking
Financial Company, registered with Reserve Bank of India.

INTERNAL CONTROL/INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements.
During the year under review, such controls were
tested by the Statutory Auditors of the Company and
no material weaknesses in the design or operations
were observed and reported by the Statutory Auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company is classified as a systemically important
non-deposit accepting nonbanking financial company
and is in compliance with all applicable laws. As
a Company, it continues to adhere to the highest
standards of risk management and governance
through ongoing investments in technology, people,
processes, marketing and brand building. It believes
in rigorous underwriting, strong documentation and a
policy of cooperative loan management. To ensure its
superior underwriting standards, it has a robust risk
management system in place which systematically
vets and assesses credit profile against a conservative
lending strategy resulting in selective approvals.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has established a vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report their genuine
concerns and provide for adequate safeguards against
victimization of the persons who use such mechanism
and make provision for direct access to the chairman
of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional
cases. Accordingly, the Company has in place the
Whistle Blower Policy hosted on its website, that
can be viewed at http://www.alticocap.com/whistleblower-policy.html.
During the FY 2017-18, no cases under this mechanism
were reported to the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO
The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings
and outgo appear as separate items in the notes to
the Financial Statements. Since, the Company does

In terms of Section 178 of the Act, the Board
have adopted a ‘Remuneration Policy’ inter-alia
setting out the criteria for deciding remuneration
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Senior Management Personnel and other Employees
of the Company. The aforesaid Policy is hosted on
the website of the Company and can be viewed at
http://www.alticocap.com/remuneration-policy.html.
In terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the disclosures
with respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Employees of the Company
have been provided in Annexure C to this report. In
terms of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(2)
and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the statement relating to particulars of employees of the
Company is available for inspection by the Members at
the registered office of the Company during business
hours on working days. A copy of this statement may be
obtained by the Members by writing to the Company
Secretary of the Company. The Board hereby confirm
that the remuneration paid to the Directors is as per
the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR)
The Board of Directors had constituted Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance
with Section 135 of the Act read with rules formulated
therein. The Company had carried out its CSR
activities/ programs on the recommendation of the
CSR Committee and duly approved by the Board
and in accordance with the policy on CSR as per the
identified core areas.
The Company has contributed INR 4.46 crore towards
CSR expenditure in various projects stipulated under
Schedule VII of the Act.
The details of contents of CSR Policy of the Company
and the details about the CSR activities/initiatives
taken by the Company during the FY 2017-18 have
been appended as Annexure D to this Report.

The Company believes that its success is largely
determined by the quality of its workforce and their
commitment towards achieving the goals of the
Company. In order to enable the employees of the
Company to participate in the future growth and
success of the Company, the Company had in place
“Altico Capital India Limited Stock Based Incentive
Plan 2015”.
In terms of Section 62 of the Act read with Rule 12(9)
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014, the disclosures for FY ended on March
31, 2018 is annexed in Annexure E to this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forms part of this Annual Report.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY
THE COMPANY
The Financial Statements of the Company has been
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to
comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Act and the Guidelines prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of India, as applicable.

AUDITORS
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, having Firm
Registration No. 012754N/N500016, were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September
27, 2017 and holds office for a period of five years i.e.
from the conclusion of the AGM held on September
27, 2017 till the conclusion of the AGM of the Company
to be held in FY 2022-23. Vide notification dated May
7, 2018 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
requirement of seeking ratification of appointment of
statutory auditors by members at each AGM has been
done away with. Accordingly, no such item has been
considered in notice of the 14th AGM.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors
of the Company, in their independent report for the FY
ended March 31, 2018 and therefore does not require
any comments from the Directors in this Report. The
Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of
fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company during
the FY 2017-18.
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not own or carry out any manufacturing activity, the
particulars relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption stipulated in the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable. However,
as a prudent practice the Company ensures optimum
utilization of energy. Accordingly, the details of
conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo is annexed as
Annexure B to this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204(1) of the Act, and Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Aashish K Bhatt & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
FY 2017-18 in prescribed form MR-3 as received from M/s. Aashish K Bhatt & Associates is appended to this report
as Annexure F. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made in the Secretarial
Audit Report and therefore does not require any comments from the Directors in this Report.
INTERNAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT:
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 138 of the Act and rules made thereunder, M/s Aneja & Associates,
Chartered Accountants are the Internal Auditors of the Company. The Internal Audit reports are reviewed by the
Audit Committee on periodic basis. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers
made in the Internal Audit Report and therefore does not require any comments from the Directors in this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best practices and the highest
standards of Corporate Governance through its transparent practices and processes. The Company is accountable
to its customers, government, regulatory authorities and other stakeholders. The Company’s activities are carried
out in accordance with good corporate governance practices and is constantly striving towards enhancing our
Corporate Governance Framework. The Company believes that good Corporate Governance practices enables
the Board and the Management to direct and control the affairs of the Company in an efficient manner thereby
helping the Company to achieve its goal and benefit the interest of all its stakeholders.
a)

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors, along with its Committees provide leadership and guidance to the Company’s
Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company. The size of the Board of the
Company commensurate with its size and business operations. In addition to the governance practices, the
Board lays strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity.
At present, the Board comprises 9 (nine) Directors comprising of 6 (six) Non-Executive Directors, representing
shareholders and 3 (three) Independent Non-Executive Directors. In addition, the Company also has 1 (one)
Alternate Non-Executive Director.
Composition of the Board of the Company:
Name of the Director(s)

Category

Mr. Robert Petty

Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Amit Gupta

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mark Cutis

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ali Haroon

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Rahul Merchant1

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai
Mr. Akihito Watanabe

Independent Non-Executive Director
2

Alternate Director to Mr. Ali Haroon

Notes:
1.
Mr. Rahul Merchant stepped down as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. October 04, 2017 and was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director w.e.f. October 05, 2017
2.
Mr. Akihito Watanabe was appointed as Alternate Non-Executive Director to Mr. Ali Haroon w.e.f. June 01, 2017 and
holds office in accordance with the Section 161 of the Act.
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Board Meetings:

Attendance of the Board:
Name of the Director

Board Meetings
Held

Attended

Mr. Robert Petty

7

7

Mr. Amit Gupta

7

7

Mr. Mark Cutis

7

2

Mr. Ali Haroon/ Mr. Akihito Watanabe

7

7

Mr. Rahul Merchant

7

6

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

7

6

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang

7

6

Mr. Stephen Marzo

7

7

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

7

6

The Board also takes decisions by circular resolutions which are noted by the Board at their subsequent
meeting.
Meeting of Independent Directors
The Independent Directors met on March 19, 2018 without the presence of the Chairman and the Senior
Management team. The matters considered and discussed there at, inter-alia, included those prescribed
under Schedule IV to the Act.
b)

Committees
In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the circular(s), notification(s) and directions
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Listing Regulations and the Company’s internal corporate governance
requirements, the Board has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on
the specific issues and ensure expedient resolution on diverse matters.
These include the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Credit Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Finance Committee, Asset Liability Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Internal Complaints Committee and IT Strategy Committee.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary for all the aforementioned Committees. The Committees also
take decisions by way of circular resolution which is noted by the respective Committee at its subsequent
meeting. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees along with summary of key decision/discussion
taken at each Committee, is placed before the Board for discussion / noting /approval.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of Mr. Stephen Marzo, Mr. Ali Haroon and Ms. Naina Lal
Kidwai as its Members. The Audit Committee functions as per the terms of reference including but not
limited to duties, powers, roles & responsibilities, as set out in the Act and the Audit Committee Charter,
approved by the Board. During the year under review, 4 (four) Audit Committee meetings were convened
and held on May 29, 2017; September 21, 2017; November 06, 2017 and February 26, 2018 respectively.
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During the year under review, 7 (seven) meetings of the Board were convened and held on May 29, 2017;
September 19, 2017; September 27, 2017; October 04, 2017; November 09, 2017; January 10, 2018 and March
21, 2018 respectively. The meetings of the Board were chaired by Mr. Robert Petty.

II

The schedule of the Board/Committees meetings to be held in FY is circulated in advance to enable the Board/
Committee Members to plan their schedule and ensure highest level of participation at such meetings. The Board/
Committee Members are also given an option of attending meetings through videoconferencing. All applicable
rules as laid down in the Act, are complied with for holding meetings through video conferencing mode.

Composition / Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting:
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Chairman

4

4

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Mr. Ali Haroon/ Mr.
Akihito Watanabe
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive Director

Member

4

3

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

4

4

Mr. Mark Cutis
(ceased to be Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive Director

Member

4

1

The Audit Committee was reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated May 29, 2017 with Mr. Stephen Marzo,
Mr. Ali Haroon and Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai as its Members.
Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Rahul Merchant, Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai, Mr. Ali Haroon and
Mr. Stephen Marzo as its Members. The Nomination Committee functions as per the terms of reference as
prescribed under the Act and applicable law including but not limited to duties, powers, roles & responsibilities,
as set out in the Nomination Committee Charter, approved by the Board. All the new appointments in
the Board of Directors are reviewed and recommended to the Board by the Nomination Committee, in
accordance with “Fit & Proper Criteria” for directors as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India.
During the year under review, 1 (one) Nomination Committee meeting was convened and held on October
04, 2017. Further, the Nomination Committee had performed their functions by passing resolutions through
circulation on May 29, 2017; December 04, 2017 and January 10, 2018 and the same were ratified by the
Board.
Composition / Attendance at the Nomination Committee Meeting:
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings
Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

1

1

Mr. Rahul Merchant
(re-appointed as a Member
w.e.f. October 05, 2017)

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

1

1

Mr. Ali Haroon/ Mr. Akihito
Watanabe
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive Director

Member

1

1

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

1

1

Mr. Mark Cutis
(ceased to be Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive Director

Member

1

-

The Nomination Committee was reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated May 29, 2017 with Mr. Stephen
Marzo, Mr. Rahul Merchant, Mr. Ali Haroon and Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai as its Members. Since Mr. Rahul Merchant
stepped down as Non-Executive Director and was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
Committee was further reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated October 04, 2017 re-appointing Mr. Rahul
Merchant as the member.
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Remuneration Committee

Composition / Attendance at the Remuneration Committee Meeting:
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of Meetings
Held

No. of Meetings
Attended

Mr. Rahul Merchant
(re-appointed as a
Member w.e.f. October
05, 2017)

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

3

3

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

3

3

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

3

1

Mr. Ali Haroon
(ceased to be a Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive
Director

Member

3

2

Mr. Mark Cutis
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. May 29, 2017)

Non-Executive
Director

Member

3

–

The Remuneration Committee was reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated May 29, 2017 with Mr. Rahul
Merchant, Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai, Mr. Mark Cutis and Mr. Stephen Marzo as its Members. Since Mr. Rahul
Merchant stepped down as Non-Executive Director and was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director, the Committee was again reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated October 04, 2017 re-appointing
Mr. Rahul Merchant as its member.
Credit Committee
The terms of reference of Credit Committee is as per the Credit Policy duly approved by the Board. The
Credit Committee comprises of Mr. Robert Petty, Mr. Amit Gupta, Mr. Mark Cutis, Mr. Ali Haroon and Ms.
Subhashree Dutta. During the year under review, 26 (twenty six) Credit Committee meetings were convened
and held on April 06, 2017; April 18, 2017; May 02, 2017; May 05, 2017; June 14, 2017; June 22, 2017; July 20,
2017; August 03, 2017; August 23, 2017; September 12, 2017; September 29, 2017; October 18, 2017; October
27, 2017; November 02, 2017; November 09, 2017; November 27, 2017; December 07, 2017; December 20,
2017; January 04, 2018; January 30, 2018; February 09, 2018; March 01, 2018; March 06, 2018; March 13, 2018;
March 15, 2018 and March 23, 2018 respectively. Further, the Credit Committee had performed their functions
by passing resolution through circulation on May 29, 2018 and the same was ratified by the Board.
Composition / Attendance at the Credit Committee Meeting:
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings
Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Robert Petty

Non-Executive Director

Chairman

26

17

Mr. Amit Gupta

Non-Executive Director

Member

26

17

Mr. Mark Cutis

Non-Executive Director

Member

26

–

Mr. Ali Haroon/Mr.
Akihito Watanabe

Non-Executive Director

Member

26

20

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

Non-Executive Director

Member

26

23
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During the year under review, 3 (three) Remuneration Committee meetings were convened and held on
April 05, 2017; May 29, 2017 and January 10, 2018 respectively. Further, the Remuneration Committee had
performed their functions by passing resolutions through circulation on June 21, 2017 and December 04,
2017 and the same were ratified by the Board.

II

The Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Rahul Merchant, Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai, Mr. Mark Cutis and
Mr. Stephen Marzo as its Members. The Remuneration Committee functions as per the terms of reference
as prescribed under the Act and applicable law including but not limited to duties, powers, roles &
responsibilities, as set out in the Remuneration Committee Charter, approved by the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)
The terms of reference of CSR Committee is as per the CSR Policy and Charter duly approved by the Board.
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of Mr. Stephen Marzo, Mr. Ali Haroon, Mr. Mark
Cutis and Ms. Subhashree Dutta.
During the year under review, 2 (two) CSR Committee meetings were convened and held on August 16, 2017
and January 10, 2018 respectively.
Composition / Attendance at the CSR Committee Meeting:
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

2

2

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

Non-Executive Director

Member

2

2

Mr. Mark Cutis

Non-Executive Director

Member

2

–

Mr. Ali Haroon/ Mr.
Akihito Watanabe

Non-Executive Director

Member

2

2

Finance Committee
In view of fund raising plan of the Company, the Board constituted the Finance Committee to approve each
kind of fund raising proposal of the Company. The Finance Committee comprises of Mr. Stephen Marzo,
Mr. Ali Haroon, Mr. Mark Cutis and Dr. Yao Chye Chiang. During the year under review, 20 (twenty) Finance
Committee meetings were convened and held on May 11, 2017; May 18, 2017; May 24, 2017; May 29, 2017; June
21, 2017; June 28, 2017; July 05, 2017; August 07, 2017; August 14, 2017; August 31, 2017; September 19, 2017;
September 27, 2017; December 04, 2017; December 07, 2017; February 20, 2018; February 27, 2018; March
07, 2018; March 15, 2018; March 22, 2018 and March 27, 2018 respectively. Further, the Finance Committee
had performed their functions by passing resolutions through circulation on April 10, 2017; May 19, 2017;
June 02, 2017; July 06, 2017; August 24, 2017; September 06, 2017; September 29, 2017; December 15, 2017;
December 20, 2017 and March 26, 2018 and the same were ratified by the Board.
Composition / Attendance at the Finance Committee Meeting
Name of the Director

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

20

19

Mr. Ali Haroon/Mr.
Akihito Watanabe

Non-Executive Director

Member

20

13

Mr. Mark Cutis

Non-Executive Director

Member

20

1

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang

Non-Executive Director

Member

20

16

Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)
The ALCO comprises of Mr. Stephen Marzo, Dr. Yao Chye Chiang, Mr. Sanjeev Agrawal, Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri,
Mr. Dhruv Jain and Mr. Gaurav Shukla as its Members. The term of reference of Asset Liability Committee
is as per the ALCO Charter duly approved by the Board. During the year under review, the Asset Liability
Committee met 2 (two) times on May 09, 2017 and November 06, 2017 respectively.
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Composition / Attendance at the Asset & Liability Committee Meeting:
Status

No. of
Meetings Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

2

2

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. January 11, 2018)

Non-Executive
Director

Member

2

–

Mr. Sanjeev Agrawal
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. January 11, 2018)

Chief Operating
Officer

Member

2

–

Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri
(ceased to be Member
w.e.f. January 11, 2018)

Chief Financial
Controller

Member

2

2

Mr. Dhruv Jain

Chief Financial Officer

Member

2

2

Mr. Gaurav Shukla
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. January 11, 2018)

Sr. Vice President –
Treasury

Member

2

–

Statutory Report

Category

II

Name of the Members

The ALCO Committee was reconstituted vide resolution dated January 11, 2018 passed by its members by
way of circulation with Mr. Stephen Marzo, Dr. Yao Chye Chiang, Mr. Sanjeev Agrawal, Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri, Mr.
Dhruv Jain and Mr. Gaurav Shukla as its Members.
Risk Committee
The Risk Committee comprises of Mr. Stephen Marzo, Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri, Mr. Rahul Merchant, Mr. Amit
Pachisia and Ms. Vineeta Sharma as its Members. The term of reference of Risk Committee is as per the Risk
Committee Charter duly approved by the Board. During the year under review, the Risk Committee met 2
(two) times on July 21, 2017 and January 11, 2018 respectively.
Composition / Attendance at the Risk Management Committee:
Name of the Members

Category

Status

No. of
Meetings
Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent NonExecutive Director

Chairman

2

2

Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri

Chief Financial
Controller

Member

2

2

Mr. Rahul Merchant
(re-appointed as a
Member w.e.f. October 04,
2017)

Independent NonExecutive Director

Member

2

2

Mr. Amit Pachisia

Chief Credit Officer

Member

2

2

Ms. Vineeta Sharma

VP-Operations

Member

2

2

Since Mr. Rahul Merchant stepped down as Non-Executive Director and was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Committee was reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated October 04, 2017
re-appointing Mr. Rahul Merchant as its member.
Internal Complaints Committee
In terms of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013,
(“Sexual Harassment Act”) the Board had constituted the Internal Complaints Committee.
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Composition of the Internal Complaints Committee:
Sr.
No.

Name of the Members

Designation

Status

1.

Ms. Vineeta Sharma

Vice President – Operations

Presiding Officer

2.

Ms. Snigha Malik

Vice President – Credit & Investment

Member

3.

Mr. Amit Pachisia

Chief Credit Officer

Member

4.

Mr. Karthik Mahalingam

Partner, Shardul Amarchand Mangaldas &
Co Advocates & Solicitors

External Member

The terms of reference of the Internal Complaints Committee inter-alia includes:
a.

conducting an inquiry into complaints made by any aggrieved at the workplace;

b.

arriving at a conclusion as to whether the allegation against whom the complaint has been filed was
proved or not; and

c.

take necessary actions to resolve the complaint(s).

The Board confirm that during the year under review, the Company did not receive any sexual harassment
complaints.
IT Strategy Committee
In terms of RBI Master Direction-Information Technology Framework 2017 for NBFC sector (“Directions”),
the Board had constituted the IT Strategy Committee on October 04, 2017.
The terms of reference of the IT Strategy Committee are as per the IT Security Policy and IT Committee
Charter duly approved by the Board of Directors.
During the year under review, the meeting of IT Strategy Committee was convened and held on December
07, 2017.
Composition / Attendance of the IT Strategy Committee:
Sr.
No.

Name of the Member

Designation

Status

No. of
Meetings Held

No. of
Meetings
Attended

1.

Mr. Rahul Merchant

Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Chairman

1

1

2.

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. December 22, 2017)

Non-Executive
Director

Member

1

–

3.

Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal
(appointed as a Member
w.e.f. December 22, 2017)

Chief
Operating
Officer

Member

1

–

4.

Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri
(ceased to be Member
w.e.f. December 22, 2017)

Chief Financial
Controller

Member

1

1

5.

Mr. Ashfan Ganatra
(ceased to be Member
w.e.f. December 22, 2017)

Vice President
– Finance

Member

1

1

The Committee was reconstituted vide resolution dated December 22, 2017 passed by the Board of Directors
by way of circulation with Mr. Rahul Merchant, Dr. Yao Chye Chiang and Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal as its Members.
c)

Policies / Code
In terms of the RBI Regulations, the applicable provisions of the Act and the applicable regulations issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the Board of Directors has adopted several policies/guidelines
for the effective governance of the Company which includes the following:
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2)

Investment Policy

3)

Demand/call loans

4)

Guidelines on Know Your Customer and
Anti Money Laundering Policy

5)

Interest Rate Policy

6)

Asset Liability Management Policy

7)

“Fit & Proper” Person Criteria

8)

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

9)

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

10)

Related Party Transaction Policy

11)

Code of Conduct for Prohibition of
Insider Trading and Code of Practices
and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

12)

Credit Risk Management Policy

13)

Record Retention Policy

14)

Internal Code of Corporate Governance

15)

Fraud Prevention & Detection Policy

16)

Policy for Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace

17)

Information Security Policy

18)

Remuneration Policy for Directors’, Key
Managerial Personnel and Employees

19)

MATERIAL CHANGES, IF ANY, POST FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
Apart from the information disclosed under the State
of Company’s Affairs there has not occurred any
material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company between the end of
FY i.e. March 31, 2018 and the date of signing of this
report.

MATERIAL ADVERSE ORDERS, IF ANY
There are no significant and material orders passed by
the RBI or the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or courts
or Tribunals or other Regulatory / Statutory authorities
which will have an impact on the going concern status
of the Company and Company’s operations in future.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of the provisions of section 134 (5) of the Act,
the directors hereby confirm that:
l

l

l

Resource Planning Policy;

20) Valuation and Collateral Policy
d)

Compliance Monitoring & Reporting Tool
In terms of provisions of Section 134(5)(f) of
the Act, the Company has devised an online
Compliance Monitoring and Reporting Tool
(“Tool”) to ensure timely compliances of all the
applicable laws and the said Tool is functioning
effectively and efficiently. The Compliance Officer
places a periodic Compliance Report before the
Board/Committees of the Board.

e)

Registration with Legal Entity Identifier India
Limited (LEIL)
In accordance with RBI circular no. RBI/201718/82 DBR.No.BP.BC.92/21.04.048/2017-18 dated
November 02, 2017, the Company had obtained
registration with LEIL and was subsequently
issued LEI number 335800A8BUHR8L8UVF19.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
During FY under review, there was no change in the
nature of business of the Company.

l

l

l

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;
They have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and
of the profit of the Company for the year ended
as on that date;
They have taken proper and sufficient care for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;
They have prepared the annual accounts for FY
ended March 31, 2018, on a going concern basis;
They have laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively;
They have devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

RBI GUIDELINES
The Company has constituted various committees
in compliance with applicable regulations/directions
issued by RBI (as amended from time to time). These
Committees primarily measure, monitor, report and
control risks of the Company. The Company always
aims to operate in compliance with the applicable laws
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Fair Practices Code

II

1)

including RBI regulations and deploys its best efforts
towards achieving the same. The Company to the best
knowledge of its management has complied with all
applicable regulations and guidelines issued by the
applicable authorities including the Reserve Bank of
India.
As required by the RBI under the Non-Banking Financial
Companies-Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2015, the management of the Company, in
addition to this report, have prepared a management
discussion analysis report which forms part of this
report.
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The Board wishes to place on record their appreciation
for the dedication and hard work put in by the employees
of the Company at all levels and the support extended
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business relationships with regulatory authorities and
clients remained good during the year under review.
The Board is also thankful to the Reserve Bank of India
and other regulatory authorities for their cooperation,
guidance and support extended by them to the
Company in its endeavours.
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Altico Capital India Limited

Robert Petty
Director
(DIN:00385586)

Stephen Marzo
Director
(DIN: 01443338)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

ANNEXURE A
Form No. MGT–9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
Sl. No.

II.

Statutory Report

I.

Particulars

Details

(i)

CIN

U65993MH2004PLC144260

(ii)

Registration Date

January 28, 2004

(iii)

Name of the Company

Altico Capital India Limited (formerly Altico Capital
India Private Limited)

(iv)

Category / Sub–Category of the
Company

Public Company limited by shares

(v)

Address of the Registered office and
contact details

Altico Capital India Limited
21, 2nd Floor, 5 North Avenue, Maker Maxity,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East,
Mumbai 400051
Phone: 022–67154000
Fax: 022–67154001

(vi)

Whether listed company

Equity Shares:– No
Debentures:– Yes

(vii)

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited
Unit–1, Luthra Industrial Premises,
1st Floor, 44–E, M Vasanti Marg,
Andheri– Kurla Road,
Safed Pool, Andheri West,
Mumbai–400072
Tel: 022-2851 5606
Fax: 022-28512885

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:–
Sl.
No.
1

III.

Name and Description of main
products / services
Credit Granting (Non–Deposit Taking
Non–Banking Financial Activity)

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover of
the company

64920

100

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES
Sl. No.

1.

Name and Address of the
Company
India Credit Pte Limited
Address: 6 Temasek
Boulevard #38-03
Suntec Tower Four,
Singapore 038986

II

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018
Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN/
GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associates

% of Shares
held

Applicable
Section

N.A

Holding
Company

100%

2 (46) and
2 (87) of the
Companies
Act 2013
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IV.	SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL
EQUITY)
i)

Category–wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders

A.

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% Change
% of Total during the
year
Shares

Promoters

(1) Indian

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

a) Individual/HUF

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

b) Central Govt

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

c) State Govt (s)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

d) Bodies Corp.

–

e) Banks / FI

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

f) Any other…

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Sub–total (A)(1):

–

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs – Individuals

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

b) Other – Individuals

–

1

1

0.00

–

1

1

0.00

–

479,479,678

–

479,479,678

100.00

479,479,673

5

479,479,678

100.00

–

d) Banks / FI

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

e) Any Other….

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Sub–total (A)(2):

479,479,678

1

479,479,679

100.00

479,479,673

6

479,479,679

100.00

–

479,479,678

1

479,479,679

100.00

479,479,673

6

479,479,679

100.00

–

a) Mutual Funds

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

b) Banks / FI

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

c) Central Govt

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

d) State Govt(s)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

e) Venture Capital Funds

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

f) Insurance Companies

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

g) FIIs

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

h)	Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

i)	Others (Multilateral
Financial Institutions)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

		 i) Indian

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

		

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

		 ii) Individual
shareholders holding nominal
share capital in excess of ` 1
lakh

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

c) Others (specify)

c) Bodies Corp.

Total shareholding of Promoter
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B.

Public Shareholding

1.

Institutions

Sub–total (B)(1):–
2.

Non–Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
ii) Overseas

b) Individuals
		 i) Individual
shareholders holding nominal
share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Sub–total (B)(2):

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

479,479,678

1

479,479,679

100.00

479,479,673

6

479,479,679

100.00

–

Grand Total (A+B+C)
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(ii)

Shareholding of Promoters

Sl No

Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at the end of
% change in
the year
shareholdNo. of
% of total %of Shares ing during
the year
Shares
Shares
Pledged
of the
/ encumcompany
bered to
total shares

India Credit Pte. Ltd.

479,479,678

100.00

NIL

479,479,673

100.00

NIL

–

Mr. Robert Petty* (holding on
behalf of India Credit Pte. Ltd.)

1

0.00

NIL

1

0.00

NIL

–

3

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with
India Credit Holdings Pte. Ltd.

–

–

–

1

0.00

NIL

–

4

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with
India Credit Holdings Cayman
Ltd.

–

–

–

1

0.00

NIL

–

5

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with
Clearwater Capital Partners
Fund IV, L.P.

–

–

–

1

0.00

NIL

–

6

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with
Clearwater Capital Partners
Singapore Fund IV, Private
Limited

–

–

–

1

0.00

NIL

–

7

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt.
with Clearwater ICPL Co–
investment Fund L.P.
Total

–

–

–

1

0.00

NIL

–

479,479,679

100.00

NIL

479,479,679

100.00

NIL

–

Statutory Report
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*Mr. Robert Petty, registered shareholder of the Company, has transferred the beneficial interest in the said equity share
to India Credit Pte Ltd.

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
Sl. No.

1

For each of the Promoters

Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

Transfer

Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

100.00

479,479,678

100.00

(5)

(0.00)

479,479,673

100.00

479,479,673

100.00

Transfer

–

–

–

–

1

0.00

1

0.00

1

0.00

At the End of the year
India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with India
Credit Holdings Cayman Ltd
At the beginning of the year

4

479,479,678

At the End of the year
India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with India
Credit Holdings Pte. Ltd
At the beginning of the year

3

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares
of the
company

India Credit Pte. Ltd.
At the beginning of the year

2

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares
of the
company

Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

Transfer

–

–

–

–

1

0.00

1

0.00

1

0.00

At the End of the year
India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with Clearwater
Capital Partners Fund IV, L.P.
At the beginning of the year
Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

Transfer

At the End of the year

–

–

–

–

1

0.00

1

0.00

1

0.00

Altico Capital India Limited
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Shareholding at the beginning of
the year
No. of
% of total %of Shares
Shares
Shares
Pledged
of the
/ encumCompany
bered to
total shares
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Sl. No.

For each of the Promoters

5

India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with Clearwater
Capital Partners Singapore Fund IV,
Private Limited
At the beginning of the year
Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

Transfer

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares
of the
company

–

–

–

–

1

0.00

1

0.00

1

0.00

At the End of the year
India Credit Pte. Ltd. Jt. with Clearwater
ICPL Co–investment Fund L.P.

6

At the beginning of the year
Date

Changes during the year

21.11.2017

Transfer

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No. of
% of total
shares
shares
of the
company

–

–

–

–

1

0.00

1

0.00

1

0.00

At the End of the year

(iv)	
Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):
Sl.
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the
year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares
of the
company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares
of the
company

At the beginning of the year

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v)

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative
Shareholding during the
year

No. of
shares

% of total
shares
of the
company

No. of
shares

% of total
shares
of the
company

At the beginning of the year

1

0.00

1

0.00

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat
equity etc)

–

–

–

–

At the End of the year

1

0.00

1

0.00

Robert Petty
(nominee of India Credit Pte. Ltd.)
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V.

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
[Amt in INR Crores.]
Deposits

Total

Loans*

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount

1,243.00

600.00

-

1,843.00

-

-

-

-

29.02

36.38

-

65.40

1,272.02

636.38

-

1,908.40

ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
•

Addition

3,668.08

1,278.00

-

4,946.08

•

Reduction

1,208.50

1,399.00

-

2,607.50

2,459.58

(121.00)

-

2,338.58

3,702.58

479.00

-

4,181.58

-

-

-

-

36.85

19.74

-

56.59

3,739.43

498.74

-

4,238.17

Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

* Does not include unamortised discount on commercial papers

VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole–time Directors and/or Manager: Not Applicable
[Amt in INR]
Sl.
No.
1.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

N.A.

N.A.

Gross salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income–tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income–tax Act,1961
(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income– tax Act, 1961

2.

Stock Option

–

–

3.

Sweat Equity

–

–

4.

Commission

5.

–

as % of profit

–

–

–

others, specify

–

–

Others, please specify

–

–

N.A.

N.A.

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

NA

Altico Capital India Limited
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Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

II

Unsecured

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

B.

Remuneration to other directors:
[Amt in INR Crores]

Sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

1

Independent Directors
•
Fee for attending board committee meetings
•
Commission
•
Others (Directors Remuneration) *

0.13
0.14
0.47

0.04
0.26
0.53

0.05
0.28
0.59

0.22
0.68
1.60

Total (1)

0.74

0.79

0.93

2.49

Other Non–Executive Directors
•
Fee for attending board committee meetings
•
Commission
•
Others (Directors Remuneration) *

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

Total (2)

–

–

–

–

Total (B)= (1+2)

0.74

0.79

0.93

2.49

Total Remuneration

0.74

0.79

0.93

2.49

2

Name of Directors
Mr.
Stephen
Marzo

Ms. Naina Mr. Rahul
Lal Kidwai Merchant#

Total
Amount

5.54

Overall Ceiling as per the Act **

*The Company got converted into a public company on November 22, 2017. The provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company prior to conversion to public company. The remuneration
paid to directors upto November 21, 2017 is shown as Other Remuneration. Post November 22, 2017, the directors
were paid remuneration in the form of sitting fees and commission in terms of their respective appointment terms.
** Sitting Fees is not considered for the purpose of Overall Ceiling calculations
# Mr. Rahul Merchant stepped down as Non–Executive Director w.e.f. October 04, 2017 and was appointed as
Independent Non–Executive Director w.e.f. October 05, 2017

C.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WT
[Amt in INR Crores]

Sl.
No.

1.

Particulars of Remuneration

Mr. Sanjay
Grewal
(Chief
Executive
Officer)
Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income–tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites under section 17(2)
Income–tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income–tax Act, 1961

Mr. Dhruv
Jain (Chief
Financial
Officer)

Mr. Binoy
K Parikh
(Company
Secretary)

Total

6.30

2.57

0.61

9.48

2.

Stock Option

52,38,302

12,75,416

78,500

6,592,218

3.

Sweat Equity

–

–

–

–

4.

Commission
– as % of profit
– others, specify

–

–

–

–

5.

Others, please specify

–

–

–

–

6.30

2.57

0.61

9.48

TOTAL
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

II

Section
Brief
Details of
Authority
of the
Description
Penalty/
[RD/
Companies
Punishment/
NCLT/
Act
Compounding
Court]
fee imposed

A. COMPANY
N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Punishment

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Compounding

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Penalty

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Punishment

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Compounding

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Statutory Report

Penalty

B. DIRECTORS

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Punishment

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Compounding

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Signed By

Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

Stephen Marzo
DIN: 01443338

Altico Capital India Limited
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ANNEXURE B
DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
I.

II.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)

the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy– Not applicable

(ii)

the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy– Not applicable

(iii)

the capital investment on energy conservation equipments – Not applicable

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i)

the effort made towards technology absorption– Not applicable

(ii)

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution– Not applicable

(iii)

in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year): Not applicable

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not applicable
The Company is not a manufacturing Company, however energy conservation continues to receive
priority attention at all levels. All efforts are made to conserve and optimise energy. The Company is
constantly active in harnessing and tapping the latest and best technology in the industry, wherever
possible.

III.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Kindly refer to Note no. 27 of the Note to the Financial Statements Section of the Balance Sheet.

Signed By

Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586
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Stephen Marzo
DIN: 01443338

ANNEXURE C
Disclosures in terms of sub–section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018

2

Disclosure

The ratio of remuneration of Name of the Director
each Director to the median 1. Mr. Stephen Marzo
remuneration of the employees of 2. Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai
the Company for the financial year
3. Mr. Rahul Merchant

The
percentage
increase
in
remuneration of each director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, if any, in the financial year

Statutory Report

1

Requirement

II

Sr.
No.

1.20:1
1.34:1
1.50:1

4. Mr. Robert Petty

N.A.

5. Mr. Amit Gupta

N.A.

6. Mr. Ali Haroon

N.A.

7. Ms. Subhashree Dutta

N.A.

8. Mr. Mark Cutis

N.A.

9. Dr. Yao Chye Chiang

N.A.

% increase in their remuneration
Name of Director / CEO /
during the Financial year ended 2018
CFO/CS
1.

Mr. Stephen Marzo

10.99%

2. Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

–2.22%

3. Mr. Rahul Merchant

–3.14%

4. Mr. Robert Petty

N.A.

5. Mr. Amit Gupta

N.A.

6. Mr. Ali Haroon

N.A.

7. Ms. Subhashree Dutta

N.A.

8. Mr. Mark Cutis

N.A.

9. Dr. Yao Chye Chiang

N.A.

10. Mr. Sanjay Grewal (CEO)

13%

11. Mr. Dhruv Jain (CFO)

12%

12. Mr. Binoy Parikh (CS)

30 %

3

the percentage increase in the –7.80%
median remuneration of employees
in the financial year

4

the number of permanent
50
employees on the rolls of company

5

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year was 24% whereas the average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration
was 13%. The average increase every year is in line with the Company’s performance and benchmarking to
be competitive to our peer group Companies.

6

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per
policy of the company
the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Signed By

Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

Stephen Marzo
DIN: 01443338

Altico Capital India Limited
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ANNEXURE D
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[As prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1)	
A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web–link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
The Committee is committed to improve the society in which it operates with a view to achieve this objective.
The Company has formulated a CSR Policy which inter alia contains the information pertaining to the CSR
activities identified by the Company, constitution of the CSR Committee and the manner in which the CSR
Committee shall function. The Policy is hosted on the website of the Company and can be viewed at http://
www.alticocap.com/csr–policy.html.
In order to initiate a start on its CSR responsibilities, the Company will distribute its CSR efforts in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 around the following themes:

2)

•

Health & Sanitation

•

Self Help groups empowering women

•

Cleanliness & Hygiene programme

•

Education

Composition of the CSR Committee
The CSR Committee of the Company consist of following members:
•

Mr. Stephen Marzo (Independent Director and Chairman)

•

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

•

Mr. Ali Haroon

•

Mr. Mark Cutis

3)

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years
INR 2,225,270,151/– (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Twenty Two Crore Fifty Two Lakhs Seventy Thousand One
Hundred Fifty One).

4)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
INR 44,505,403/– (Indian Rupees Four Crore Forty Five Lakhs Five Thousand Four Hundred Three) [Rounded
Off].

5)

Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
INR 44,600,000/– (Indian Rupees Four Crores Forty Six Lakhs)
(a)

		

Total amount to be spent for the financial year;
INR 44,600,000/– (Indian Rupees Four Crores Forty Six Lakhs)

(b)

Amount unspent, if any;

		NIL
(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

		

[In INR]
(1)
S.
No

54

(2)
CSR project
or activity
identified

1

Goonj

2

The
Akanksha
Foundation

(3)
Section in
Which the
Project is
Covered

(4)
Projects or
programs
(1) Local area or
other
(2) Specify
the state and
district where
projects or
programs was
undertaken

Women
Purnea &
Empowerment Champaran,
Bihar
Education
Andheri,
Mumbai,
Maharashtra
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(5)
Amount
outlay
(budget)
project or
programs
wise

(6)
(7)
(8)
Amount spent
Cumulative
Amount
on the projects
expenditure
spent:
or programs
upto to the
Direct or
Sub – heads: (1)
reporting
through
Direct expenditure
period
implementing
on projects or
agency
programs
(2) Overheads:

10,000,000 Amount to be
utilised by the
Agency in FY 18–19
11,200,000 Direct Expenses:
1,200,000
Overheads: NIL

4,775,000

Direct

5,955,000

Direct

(1)
S.
No

(2)
CSR project
or activity
identified

(3)
Section in
Which the
Project is
Covered

St. Judes
Health and
Cancer Care Hygiene

Jaipur,
Rajasthan

4

WOTR

Water
Conservation

Jalna,
Maharashtra

5

Health &
Hygiene

6

Dr. Mane
Medical
Foundation
Nanhi Kali

7

Takshila

Education

Rahuri,
Ahmednagar,
Maharashtra
Noida, Gautam
Buddh Nagar,
Uttar Pradesh
Mumbai,
Maharashtra

8

Water Aid
[Jal Seva
Charitable
Institution]

Health &
Hygiene

Education

Delhi

1,000,000

(6)
(7)
(8)
Amount spent
Cumulative
Amount
on the projects
expenditure
spent:
or programs
upto to the
Direct or
Sub – heads: (1)
reporting
through
Direct expenditure
period
implementing
on projects or
agency
programs
(2) Overheads:

Direct Expenses:
646,097
Overheads: NIL
10,000,000 Direct Expenses:
23,40,072
Overheads:
1,59,928
2,500,000 Direct Expenses:
500,000
Overheads: NIL
2,000,000 Direct Expenses:
1,144,023
Overheads: 46,302
1,400,000 Amount to be
utilised by the
Agency in FY 18–19
6,500,000 Amount to be
utilised by the
Agency in FY 18–19

1,446,097

Direct

5,000,000

Direct

3,000,000

Direct

2,390,325

Direct

925,000

Direct

–

–

Goonj:
Goonj is an NGO which provides clothes and other basic amenities to millions in the farflung villages by
turning urban wastage into a resource for rural India. This initiative was started by Goonj in 1998. With force
of over 300 volunteers, Goonj implements various initiatives over 150 grass root organisations, panchayats
and social activities across 20 states in India.
Akanksha Foundation:
Akanksha Foundation’s mission is to provide children from low income communities with high quality
education enabling them to maximise their potential and transform their lives. Akanksha Foundation works
in the field of education, initial school reform through ‘The School Project’. The School Project is a venture
to open high quality schools serving children from low–income communities in Mumbai and Pune.
St. Jude’s Cancer Care:
St. Jude India Child Care Centres (St. Jude) currently runs 18 centres in Mumbai, Delhi, Kolkata, Hyderabad
and Jaipur. It caters to major cities in India by offering low cost cancer treatment for children who need
treatment and provide facilities to their parents who accompany their children to hospitals from distant
towns and villages. The hospitals do not treat them as in–patients during the long drawn out treatment and
these needy families do not have a place to stay whenever the child is not admitted to hospital. Hence, St
Jude provides these families with free of cost:
(i)
Housing
(ii) Nutritional support
(iii) Transportation to and from the hospital
(iv) Counselling for the family and new skills for income generation
(v) Educational and recreational activities
(vi) Art–based therapy, music therapy and yoga
WOTR – (Watershed Organisation Trust):
Established in 1993, WOTR is a non–profit organization. It is engaged in collation of best practices, transfer
of knowledge and acceptable polices in collaboration with stakeholders across sectors. Headquartered in
Pune, WOTR has supported and carried out development work in over 3,700 villages across 7 Indian states
– Maharashtra, Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Jharkhand and Odisha. Its unique
strength lies in its ‘on–field’ experience and in a systemic, participatory approach. WOTR was initiated to
support a large–scale multi–actor, multi–level, multi– sectoral, community led watershed development
program for poverty reduction. In short, they have a model for utilizing the local resources and providing
guidance for water conservation projects. The proposed project will be implemented in 2 villages of Ambad
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(5)
Amount
outlay
(budget)
project or
programs
wise

II

(4)
Projects or
programs
(1) Local area or
other
(2) Specify
the state and
district where
projects or
programs was
undertaken

block of Jalna district. We recognize the extensive use of third parties by WOTR. We will focus our monitoring
on the programs being implemented in the 2 villages and resources being used for the same.
Dr. Mane Medical Foundation:
Dr. Swapnil Mane (MBBS, MD, DGO, FCPS, MD – Gynaec– oncosurgeon) started the journey towards fulfilling
his dream of fighting against cancer with the inauguration of ‘Dr. Mane Medical Foundation & Research
Center’, a National, social, secular, NGO which stands committed for cancer control at village Rahuri, district
of Ahmednagar, Maharashtra. The foundation is one of the few medical foundations in India which has
been recognized by SIRO (Scientific and Industrial Research Organization) by Department of science and
Technology (Govt. Of India).
The foundation has adopted two remote villages Mhaisgaon and Tahrabad for this community based cervical
cancer project and made them free of cervical cancer in just 2 years. The team has operated 550 patients
free of cost under community based cancer project and has undertaken 106 Cancer Awareness Sessions.
Nanhi Kali:
Project Nanhi Kali was initiated in 1996 by the K. C. Mahindra Education Trust (KCMET) with the aim of
providing primary education to underprivileged girl child in India. Anand Mahindra, the current chairman of
Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd., founded Project Nanhi Kali with a strong belief that educated women would not
only contribute to the economy but also issues of population and social evils like the dowry system and child
marriage would reduce as more women are educated.
Takshashila Prabodhini:
It is an NGO which is aimed to help the transformation of India through education and develop a “Method
of Education” that’s recognized and acknowledged for creating Impact on students. Their target audience
is bright boys above 7th grade who need Senior Schooling or Under Graduate studies in private schools
far from their villages in the city areas as there are no government schools near their homes. Such students
cannot travel from their villages to school each day. If they do so, they need to rent a place for stay which
makes it unaffordable. They reach out to parents of such children and give them a residential stay option
close to their schools along with our “Method of Education” that helps them build their capabilities.
Water Aid Organisation:
WaterAid commenced operations in India in 1986 as a Liaison office of WaterAid UK and continued to
operate as such till March 2016. From April 2016 onwards, all WaterAid operations in India were transferred
to Jal Seva Charitable Foundation (JSCF), an Associate member of WaterAid International and an exclusive
holder of the WaterAid brand in India. JSCF (hereinafter referred to as WaterAid India) works through its
teams in four regional offices. Presently, WaterAid India directly intervenes in 24 districts and 4 towns/cities
across 11 states of India through committed partner organizations in each location.
WaterAid India has demonstrated scalable models of integrated Water Sanitation and Hygiene (WASH)
over the past three decades in India. Under the last strategy period (2011–2016), WaterAid India reached
28,42,300 people with access to safe water, 30,39,596 people with access to sanitation and 54,59,080
people with hygiene education. Last year, (FY 16–17) they reached 6,03,716 people with water, 11,71,524
people with sanitation and 16,35,023 people with hygiene through Water aid and their efforts. In addition
to direct efforts at the community level, WaterAid India, seeks to influence change on scale through its
strategic partnerships with state governments and key central ministries.

6)	
In case the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending
the amount in its Board report.
The Company has been contributing 2% of its average net profits of the last 3 financial years towards the
CSR activities.

7)	A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with
the CSR objectives as stated in the CSR Policy of the Company.

Signed By

Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586
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Stephen Marzo
DIN: 01443338

ANNEXURE E
Disclosure under the Altico Capital India Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015 pursuant to
the provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on
Financial year ended March 31, 2018

Number of options granted

45,54,470

Number of options vested

25,47,236

Number of options exercised

NIL

Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options

NIL

Number of options lapsed / cancelled

5,39,414

Exercise Price

INR 39.0– INR 80.07

Variation of terms of options

NIL

Money realised by the exercise of options

NIL

Total number of options in force

1,45,63,608

Statutory Report

Disclosure as per the Altico Capital India
Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015

Details of options granted to Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) under the Altico Capital India
Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015
Sr.
No.

Name of the KMP

Designation

1

Sanjay Grewal

Chief Executive Officer

2

Dhruv Jain

Chief Financial Officer

3

Binoy Parikh

Company Secretary

Options Granted
52,38,302
12,75,416
78,500

Details of employees who received a grant of options in any one year of options amounting to five
per cent or more of options granted during that year

Sr.
No.

Name of the Employee

Designation

Options Granted

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Identified employees who were granted options during any one year equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at
the time of grant
Sr.
No.

Name of the Employee

Designation

Options Granted

1

Sanjay Grewal

Chief Executive Officer

52,38,302

Signed By

Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

II

Particulars

Stephen Marzo
DIN: 01443338
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ANNEXURE F
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 – Not
Applicable;

The Members,
Altico Capital India Limited
21, 2nd Floor, 5 North Avenue, Maker Maxity,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East
Mumbai - 400 051.
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Altico Capital India
Limited formerly known as “Altico Capital India Private
Limited” (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts
/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.
Based on the verification of Company’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2018 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has followed proper Board - processes
and have required compliance – mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.
I have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March
31, 2018, according to the provisions of:
(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the
Rules made thereunder;

(ii)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and bye-laws framed thereunder – Not Applicable;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999
and the rules and regulations made thereunder
for compliance in respect of Foreign Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
no overseas Direct Investment has been perused
by the Company;
(v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):(a)
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(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 – Not
Applicable;

(d)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 – Not Applicable;

(e)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client –
Not Applicable;

(g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 - Not applicable; and

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998Not applicable.

I have also examined compliance with applicable
clauses of the following:
(i)

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
the Company Secretaries of India for General
Meetings, Board Meetings, Audit Committee,
Nomination
Committee,
Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, Finance Committee and Credit
Committee;

(ii)

The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Listing
Agreements entered into by the Company with
the Stock Exchange(s).

During the period under review, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above.

(a)

(b)

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

(c)

Various Circulars, Notifications, Directions,
Guidelines, Master Circulars issued by the Reserve
bank of India from time to time in respect of
Systematically Important Non-Deposit Accepting
Non-Banking Financial Company.

I further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Non – Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the year under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or
on shorter notice and a system exist for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.
The decisions at Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings are carried out and recorded in the minutes
of the Board of Directors and Committee of the Board
accordingly.
I further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.
I further report that during the audit period, the
Company has undertaken event / action having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. referred to above viz.

Reconstitution of Audit committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, ALCO
Committee, Risk Committee, IT Strategy
Committee;

b.

Resignation of Mr. Rahul Merchant as NonExecutive Directors w.e.f. 04.10.2017;

c.

Appointment of Mr. Rahul Merchant as
Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 5 years w.e.f 05.10.2017;

d.

Cessation and appointment of Mr. Akihito
Watanabe as Alternate Director to Mr. Ali Haroon;

e.

Shifting of Registered Office within the city under
jurisdiction of same Registrar;

f.

Approval for investments of funds in mutual funds
up to amount not exceeding ` 1000 Crores;

g.

Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures;

h.

Obtained members approval for: -

Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on
Private Placement Basis;

-

Payment of Commission to Independent
Non Executive Director of the Company not
exceeding 1% p.a. of the net profits of the
Company;

-

Conversion of Company from Private
Company to Public Company and
consequently alteration of Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company;

-

Increase in the borrowing limits of the
Company up to INR 7,000 crores;

For Aashish K. Bhatt & Associates
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code S2008MH100200)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Aashish Bhatt
Proprietor
ACS No.: 19639, COP No.: 7023

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as
Appendix A, which forms integral part of this report.
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Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its
circulars, notifications, directions, guidelines,
Master Circulars as prescribed for Non-Banking
Financial Company’s with specific reference to
Systematically Important Non-Deposit Accepting
Non-Banking Financial Company; and

a.

II

I further report that, having regard to the compliance
system prevailing in the Company and on examination
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance
thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied
with the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

APPENDIX A
To,
The Members,
Altico Capital India Limited
21, 2nd Floor, 5 North Avenue,
Maker Maxity, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra East, Mumbai – 400051.
My report of even date is to be read along with this
letter.
1.

The responsibility of maintaining Secretarial
record is of the management and based on my
audit, I have expressed my opinion on these
records.

2.

I am of the opinion that the audit practices and
process adopted to obtain assurance about
the correctness of the Secretarial records were
reasonable for verification on test check basis.

3.

I have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and books
of accounts of the Company.

4.
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The management is responsible for compliances
with corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
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regulations, standards etc. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis and wherever required, I have obtained
the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations etc.
5.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Aashish K. Bhatt & Associates
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code S2008MH100200)

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Aashish Bhatt
Proprietor
ACS No.: 19639, COP No.: 7023

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
1.

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of Altico Capital India Limited
(formerly known as Altico Capital India Private
Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (herein referred to as
“the financial statements”).

Management’s
Statements
2.

Responsibility

for

the

6.

An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view, in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

7.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Financial

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Opinion
8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Other Matter

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

9.

4.

We have taken into account the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report.

5.

We conducted our audit in accordance with

The financial statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under
Companies Act, 2013, who, vide their report
dated May 29, 2017 expressed an unmodified
opinion on these financial statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

III

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALTICO CAPITAL INDIA
LIMITED

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10.

11.

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016’, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”),
and on the basis of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:
(a)

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)

In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

(c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

(d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March
31, 2018 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f)

62

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A.
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(g)

With respect to the other matters to
be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our knowledge
and belief and according to the information
and explanations given to us:
i.

The Company has disclosed the
impact, if any, of pending litigations
as at March 31, 2018 on its financial
position in its financial statements –
Refer Note 29;

ii.

The Company has made provision as
at March 31, 2018 as required under
the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable
losses, if any, on long-term contracts.
The Company did not have any
derivative contracts as at March 31,
2018 – Refer Note 32(vii);

iii.

There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2018;

iv.

The reporting on disclosures relating
to Specified Bank Notes is not
applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119
Mumbai
May 9, 2018

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
2.
The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
4.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
5.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
6.
A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting
7.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
8.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based
on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants
Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119
Mumbai
May 9, 2018
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.
We have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of Altico Capital India
Limited (formerly known as Altico Capital India
Private Limited) (the “Company”) as of March 31,
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

III

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Altico Capital India Limited (formerly known as Altico Capital India Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Annexure B to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Altico Capital India Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

i.

(a)	
The Company is maintaining proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of fixed
assets.
(b)

The fixed assets of the Company have been
physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

(c)

The title deeds of immovable properties, as
disclosed in Note 10.1 on fixed assets to the
financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company.

ii.

The Company is in the business of rendering
services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

iii.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)
(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

iv.

vii.

The Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of Sections
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed
there under to the extent notified.

vi.

The Central Government of India has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any
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(a)	
According
to
the
information
and
explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, in
our opinion, the Company is regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues,
including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess, goods and service tax with
effect from July 1, 2017 and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities.
(b)

According
to
the
information
and
explanations given to us and the records
of the Company examined by us, there are
no dues of sales-tax, service-tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. The
particulars of dues of income tax as at March
31, 2018 which have not been deposited on
account of disputes are as follows:

Name
of the
statute

The Company has not granted any loan or
provided any guarantee or security in connection
with any loan taken by parties covered under
section 185. Therefore, the provisions of section
185 are not applicable to the Company. The
Company is registered as a Non-Banking
Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of
India. Therefore, the provisions of Section 186,
except sub-section (1) of Section 186, of the
Act are not applicable to the Company. In our
opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has not made any investments through
more than two layers of investment companies
as mentioned in sub section (1) of Section 186 of
the Act.

v.
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of the products of the Company.

viii.

Nature of
dues

Amount
(` In
Lakhs)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where
the dispute is
pending

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

27

Assessment
Year - 2009-10

Income Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

40

Assessment
Year - 2010-11

Income Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

297

Assessment
Year - 2011-12

Income Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

135

Assessment Commissioner
Year - 2012-13 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

161

Assessment Commissioner
Year - 2013-14 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Income Tax
Tax Act, Demand
1961

175

Assessment Commissioner
Year - 2014-15 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

According to the records of the Company
examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
any financial institution or bank or Government
or dues to debenture holders as at the balance
sheet date.

ix.

xi.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xiii.

The Company has entered into transactions
with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The
details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required

xiv.

The Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xv.

The Company has not entered into any noncash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xvi.

The Company is required to, and has been
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Non-Deposit taking
Non-Banking Finance Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants
Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership Number: 101119
Mumbai
May 9, 2018
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During the course of our examination of the
books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

III

x.

The Company has not raised any moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion, and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, the moneys raised by way of term
loans have been applied for the purposes for
which they were obtained.

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2018
As at
March 31, 2018

(` in Lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2017

3
4

47,948
2,16,830
2,64,778

47,948
1,81,333
2,29,281

5
6
12
7

2,57,515
145
12
3,574
2,61,246

87,550
60
2,478
90,088

8

74,488

64,035

92,782
2,321
1,69,591

35,214
1,513
1,00,762

6,95,615

4,20,131

10.1
10.2
11.1
12
13

805
75
4,000
5,64,552
5,69,432

57
68
44,724
357
2,86,620
3,31,826

11.2
14
13
15

4,912
43,845
59,633
17,793
1,26,183
6,95,615

17,363
34,315
21,320
15,307
88,305
4,20,131

Note No.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Borrowings
Other Long Term Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Long Term Provisions
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short Term Borrowings
Trade Payables:
		
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
		Others
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term Provisions

9
7

TOTAL
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Non Current Investments
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Long Term Loans and Advances
CURRENT ASSETS
Current Investments
Cash and Bank Balances
Short Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets
TOTAL
Summary of Significant accounting policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
ALTICO CAPITAL INDIA LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
(Formerly known as Altico Capital India Private Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership No.: 101119
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018
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Robert D. Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive
Director
DIN: 00385586

Stephen J. Marzo
Director
DIN: 01443338

Dhruv Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2018
Year Ended
March 31, 2018

(` in Lakhs)
Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Revenue from Operations

16

95,182

58,820

Other Income

17

2

3

95,184

58,823

4,861

3,470

91

70

EXPENDITURE
Employee Benefit Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation

18
10.1 / 10.2

Finance Costs

19

31,323

10,165

Administration and Other Operating Expenses

20

3,582

1,999

Provisions and Write-Offs

21

855

1,490

40,712

17,194

54,472

41,629

18,606

14,629

-

112

369

(195)

TOTAL TAX EXPENSE

18,975

14,546

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

35,497

27,083

Basic

7.40

5.65

Diluted

7.30

5.53

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Current Tax
Tax Liability of Earlier Years
Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)

Earnings Per Share

22

[Nominal value of ` 10 each (P.Y ` 10 each)]
Summary of Significant accounting policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
ALTICO CAPITAL INDIA LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
(Formerly known as Altico Capital India Private Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership No.: 101119
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Robert D. Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive
Director
DIN: 00385586

Stephen J. Marzo
Director
DIN: 01443338

Dhruv Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018
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INCOME

III

Note No.

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

54,472

41,629

		Depreciation

91

70

		

Provision for Gratuity

45

45

		

Provision for Leave Encashment

32

13

		

Provision for Bonus

2,297

1,676

		

Amortisation of Financial Expneses

2,047

742

855

1,490

59,839

45,665

(3,12,214)

(2,43,228)

53,175

34,913

4,076

(1,192)

(6,578)

(10,539)

(6,289)

2,945

	- Increase / (decrease) in Current Liabilities and Provisions

2,902

2,861

	- Decrease / (increase) in bank deposits (having original Maturity
of more than 3 Months but less than 12 months)

4,673

774

(2,00,416)

(1,67,801)

(18,386)

(15,121)

(2,18,802)

(1,82,922)

Purchase of Fixed Assets

(853)

(50)

Net Cash flow used in Investing Activities (B)

(853)

(50)

A.

Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit Before Taxation
Adjustments for:

		Provision on Standard Assets and Standard Restructured
Assets
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Movements in Working Capital :
- (Increase) / decrease in Loans
- (Increase) / decrease in Investments
	- (Increase) / decrease in Interest accrued on investments
- (Increase) / decrease in Interest accrued on loans
	- (Increase) / decrease in Other advances and Current Assets

Cash used in Operations
		

- Income Taxes Paid

Net Cash flow used in Operating Activities (A)
B.
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Cash flow from Investing Activities:
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Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

2,98,250

1,18,800

10,000

397

(64,150)

–

(10,242)

60,000

2,33,858

1,79,197

	Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)

14,203

(3,775)

	Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year

19,955

23,730

34,158

19,955

–

1

1,000

–

With Banks - on Current Account

33,058

9,917

				- on Deposit Account

100

10,037

34,158

19,955

C.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings

	Changes in working capital loans and Commercial papers (net)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand
Cheques on Hand

Summary of Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
ALTICO CAPITAL INDIA LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
(Formerly known as Altico Capital India Private Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner
Membership No.: 101119
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Robert D. Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive
Director
DIN: 00385586

Stephen J. Marzo
Director
DIN: 01443338

Dhruv Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 9, 2018
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Year Ended
March 31, 2018

III

(` in Lakhs)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
1

Corporate Information
Altico Capital India Limited (formerly known as
Altico Capital India Private Limited) (‘Altico’ or
‘the Company’) was incorporated on January
28, 2004. Altico is a wholly owned subsidiary of
India Credit Pte Ltd. Altico holds certificate of
registration issued by Reserve Bank of India to
operate as a Non Banking Financial Company
(‘NBFC’) vide certificate number N-13.01777
dated January 4, 2018 (in lieu of certificate
number N-13.01777 dated January 18, 2005).

liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities in future periods.
(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated
at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs if capitalization criteria
are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.

The Company is engaged in the business
providing medium to long term finance to
corporate borrowers.
2

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
GAAP). The Company has prepared these
financial statements to comply in all material
respects with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 and the relevant provisions
of Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) as applicable to
Non Banking Financial Companies (‘NBFC’). The
financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis under the historical cost convention
except interest on non performing assets which
is recognized on realisation basis as required by
the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended
from time to time (‘NBFC Prudential Guidelines’
or 'Master Directions'). The accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of financial statements
are consistent with those of previous year.
Current – Non-current Classification: All assets
and liabilities have been classified as current or
non-current as per the Company’s operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule
III (Division I) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based
on the nature of services and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current – non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

2.1

Subsequent expenditure related to an item
of fixed asset is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing fixed assets, including
day-to-day
repair
and
maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss
for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
fixed assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.
(c)

Depreciation
Equipment

on

Property,

Particulars

Estimated
useful life
by the
Company
(in years)
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and

5
30

Useful life as
prescribed
by Shedule
II of the
Company
Act, 2013
(in years)
5
30

3
6
8
10

3
6
8
10

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent

Plant

The Company has estimated the following
useful live to depreciation its fixed assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Office Equipment
Building
Computer Equipment
Desktop / laptop
Server Network
Vehicles
Furniture & Fixtures

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(f)

(g)

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

(e)

Impairment of Property, Plant
Equipment and intangible assets

and

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal/
external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and risks specific to asset.
After impairment, depreciation is provided
on the revised carrying amount of the asset
over its remaining useful life.

in

the

nature

of

credit

Investments in the nature of credit
substitutes, which are readily realizable
and intended to be held for not more than
one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as
current investments. All other investments
are classified as non-current investments.
On initial recognition, all investments are
measured at cost. The cost comprises
purchase price and directly attributable
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees
and duties. Current investments are carried
in the financial statements at lower of cost
and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis. Long-term investments
are carried at cost less diminution other
than temporary.

Intangible assets are amortized on a
straight line basis over the estimated
useful economic life. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and
the amortization method are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are amortised using
straight line method, as per management’s
estimate over a period of 6 years.

Investments
substitutes

On disposal of an investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net
disposal proceeds is charged or credited to
the statement of profit and loss.
(h)

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured.
(i)

Interest Income on loans / Investments
/ Fixed Deposits are recognised on
a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable. As required
by the NBFC Prudential Guidelines,
interest on non-performing assets is
recognized on realisation basis. Penal
interest on all loans is recognized on
realisation basis.

(ii)

Redemption
premium
on
debt
securities is accrued over the tenure of
securities on the basis of outstanding
principal balance.

Altico Capital India Limited
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Leases, where the lessor effectively retains
substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased item, are classified
as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The useful life, residual value and the
depreciation method are reviewed atleast at
each financial year end. If the expectations
differ from previous estimates, the changes
are accounted for prospectively as a change
in accounting estimate.
(d)

Leases

III

Leasehold Improvements are amortized
over the primary life of the lease.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(iii)

the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Processing fees on loan disbursed,
recognized net of Goods and Service
Tax/Service Tax, is amortised over the
tenure of loan.

(iv) Financial Advisory Fee is recognized
in accordance with the Advisory Fee
Agreement.
(i)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest cost and
other cost incurred in connection with
borrowings. Interest cost is charged to
Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in
which it is incurred. Ancillary and other
borrowing costs are amortised over the
tenure of the underlying loan.

(j)

Foreign currency translation
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(k)

Foreign currency transactions are
recorded in Indian Rupees, the
reporting currency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount, the
exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to
be utilized within the next 12 months, is
treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date.

Foreign currency monetary items
are retranslated using the exchange
rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are
measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency,
are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

The Company treats accumulated leave
expected to be carried forward beyond
twelve months and long term bonus,
as long-term employee benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term
employee benefit are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The Company presents the leave
as a current liability in the balance sheet, to
the extent it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months
after the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on
reporting the Company’s monetary
items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded
during the year, or reported in previous
financial statements, are recognized
as income or as expenses in the year
in which they arise.

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident
fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution
payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds
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The Company operates defined benefit
plans for its employees pertaining to
gratuity liability. The costs of providing
benefits under this plan are determined on
the basis of actuarial valuation at each yearend. Separate actuarial valuation is carried
out using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses for this defined
benefit plans are recognized in full in the
period in which they occur in the statement
of profit and loss.

Annual Report
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(l)

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Current income-tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Incometax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions
where the Company operates. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
all taxable timing differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognized for deductible
timing differences only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. In situations where the
Company has unabsorbed depreciation
or carry forward tax losses, all deferred
tax assets are recognized only if there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence that they can be realized against
future taxable profits.
At each reporting date, the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets.
It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax
asset to the extent that it has become
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the
case may be, that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date. The
Company writes-down the carrying amount
of deferred tax asset to the extent that it
is no longer reasonably certain or virtually
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient
future taxable income will be available
against which deferred tax asset can be
realized. Any such write-down is reversed
to the extent that it becomes reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will
be available.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

(m) Provision for Loans and Investments
Provision of standard assets is made at
0.40% (P.Y. 0.35%) of outstanding standard
loan / investment value, pursuant to NBFC
Prudential Guidelines. Further, provision for
non performing loans / investments is made
as per management estimates, subject to,
the minimum provision required as per
NBFC Prudential Guidelines, on the basis of
the period of delinquency.
(n)

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated
by dividing the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue, share split,
and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss
for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Altico Capital India Limited
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Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of
timing differences between taxable income
and accounting income originating during
the current year and reversal of timing
differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

III

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a
year is charged to the statement of profit
and loss as current tax. The Company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset
only to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e.,
the period for which MAT credit is allowed
to be carried forward. In the year in which
the Company recognizes MAT credit as
an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in
respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under
the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is
created by way of credit to the statement
of profit and loss and shown as “MAT
Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews
the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset
to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal
tax during the specified period.

are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(o)

Provisions
A provision is recognized when the
Company has a present obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are not discounted to their
present value and are determined based
on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These
estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.
Where the Company expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to
any provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

(p)

(q)
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Employee stock compensation cost
Measurement and disclosure of the
employee share-based payment plans is
done in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Accounting for Employee Share-based
Payments, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. In accordance with
the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, the cost
of equity settled transactions is measured
using the intrinsic value method.

(r)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes
of cash flow statement comprise cash
at bank, cash in hand, cheque in hand,
remittances in transit and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.		

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability
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also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

(s)

Commercial Paper
Commercial paper is recognised at
redemption value net of unamortized
finance charges. The difference between
redemption value and issue value is
amortised on a time proportion basis and is
disclosed under interest expense.		

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Share Capital

March 31, 2017

5,948.5 lakhs (P.Y. 5,948.5 lakhs) Equity Shares of face value
of ` 10 each

59,485

59,485

0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (‘CRPS’)
515.0 lakhs (P.Y. 515.0 lakhs) of face value of ` 1 each

515

515

60,000

60,000

47,948

47,948

47,948

47,948

Authorised Shares

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
4,794.8 lakhs Equity Shares (P.Y. 4,794.8 lakhs) of face value
of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up

a.

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares

March 31, 2018
Face Value

No. of
Shares
(in lakhs)

March 31, 2017
Face Value

No. of
Shares
(in lakhs)

Authorised Shares
At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

4,795

47,948

4,795

47,948

-

-

-

-

4,795

47,948

4,795

47,948

100% equity shares held by holding Company India Credit Pte Limited (‘ICPL’), directly or through its
nominees.
As per the records of the Company, including its register of members and other declarations received
from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares.
b.

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder
of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend, if any in
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
During the Year Ended March 31, 2018, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to
Equity Shareholders was ` Nil (P.Y ` Nil).
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the Equity Shareholders will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

c.

Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company,
please refer note 33.

Altico Capital India Limited
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III

3

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
4

Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium Account

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1,29,189
1,29,189

1,29,189
1,29,189

511
511

511
511

11,817

6,400

7,099
18,916

5,417
11,817

39,816

18,150

Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet

5

Profit for the year

35,497

27,083

Less: Transfer to Special Reserve

(7,099)
68,214

(5,417)
39,816

2,16,830

1,81,333

Long-term borrowings

March 31, 2018
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities*

March 31, 2017
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities*

Redeemable non convertible debentures
Secured
Unsecured
A

96,650

6,400

46,300

20,000

5,000
1,01,650

6,400

46,300

20,000

1,24,532

68,818

41,250

11,250

31,333
1,55,865
2,57,515

10,167
78,985
85,385

41,250
87,550

11,250
31,250

2,57,515

(85,385)
-

87,550

(31,250)
-

Term loans from banks
Secured
Term loans from other than banks
Secured
B
(A)+(B)
Less: Transferred to other liabilities
Total

*Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilities”
Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of secured and unsecured loans:
a.

Secured and unsecured redeemable non convertible debentures

Residual maturity

76

March 31, 2018
Rate of interest
8.95% - 10.75%
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities

March 31, 2017
Rate of interest
9% - 10%
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities

Sep-17

-

-

-

20,000

Nov-19

-

-

11,575

-

May-20

-

-

11,575

-

Nov-20

-

-

11,575

-

May-21

-

-

11,575

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
March 31, 2018
Rate of interest
8.95% - 10.75%
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities

March 31, 2017
Rate of interest
9% - 10%
Non-current
Current
portion
maturities

May-18

-

3,500

-

-

Dec-18

-

800

-

-

Mar-19

-

2,100

-

-

Aug-19

16,250

-

-

-

Sep-19

7,500

-

-

-

Nov-19

11,575

-

-

-

May-20

11,575

-

-

-

Aug-20

16,250

-

-

-

Sep-20

2,850

-

-

-

Nov-20

11,575

-

-

-

Mar-21

7,500

-

-

-

Apr-21

5,000

-

-

-

May-21
Total

11,575
1,01,650

6,400

46,300

20,000

III

Residual maturity

Non-current portion
Debentures of ` 50,350 lakhs are secured by pari passu charge on receivables of the Company; The
Debentures of ` 46,300 lakhs are secured by first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on
identified receivables & bank account of the Company.
Current maturities
Secured by pari passu charge on receivables of the Company excluding receivables charged to secure
redeemable non convertible debentures of Rs. 46,300 lakhs.
b.

Secured term loans
Particulars

Rate of
Interest

Repayment
details

March 31, 2018

HDFC Bank Limited

9.35% 11.00%

8 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 3 quarters

10,000

13,750

13,750

6,250

Lakshmi Vilas Bank
Ltd.

9.35% 11.00%

8 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 4 quarters

5,000

5,000

2,500

-

State Bank of India

9.35% 11.00%

8 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 3 quarters

20,417

18,333

8,750

1,250

South Indian Bank
Limited

9.35% 11.00%

8 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 3 quarters

8,750

5,000

8,750

1,250

Non-current
portion

Current
maturities

March 31, 2017
Non-current
portion

Altico Capital India Limited

Current
maturities
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Particulars

78

Rate of
Interest

Repayment
details

Union Bank of India

9.35% 11.00%

8 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 3 quarters

Mashreqbank psc

9.35% 11.00%

March 31, 2018
Non-current
portion

March 31, 2017

Current
maturities

Non-current
portion

Current
maturities

2,500

5,000

7,500

2,500

3 equal annual
installment at
the end 24th,
36th and 48th
month from first
disbursal

32,000

-

-

-

L&T Finance Limited 9.35% 11.00%

18 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

20,833

4,167

-

-

Bank of Baroda Ltd

9.35% 11.00%

18 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 6 months

25,278

9,722

-

-

Hero FinCorp Ltd.

9.35% 11.00%

10 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

3,500

1,500

-

-

UCO Bank

9.35% 11.00%

10 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

2,000

1,600

-

-

Karnataka Bank
Limited

9.35% 11.00%

10 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

2,500

2,000

-

-

Catholic Syrian Bank 9.35% Ltd.
11.00%

10 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

2,500

2,000

-

-

Syndicate Bank Ltd.

9.35% 11.00%

9 quarterly
installments
starting from 9
months after first
disbursement

3,333

1,667

-

-

AU Small Finance
Bank Ltd

9.35% 11.00%

12 quarterly
installments

3,333

1,667

-

-

Bajaj Finance Ltd

9.35% 11.00%

6 equal six
monthly
installments

5,000

2,500

-

-
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Rate of
Interest

Repayment
details

March 31, 2018
Non-current
portion

9.35% 11.00%

13 equal
consecutive
quarterly
instalments
with the first
instalment
payable at
the end of 3
months from
disbursement

Tata Capital
Financial Services
Limited

9.35% 11.00%

6 quarterly
installments after
initial moratorium
of 2 quarters

Total

Non-current
portion

Current
maturities

6,921

3,079

-

-

2,000

2,000

-

-

1,55,865

78,985

41,250

11,250

Nature of Security:
Secured by a first pari passu charge on all the present and future receivables of the Company excluding
receivables charged to secure redeemable non convertible debentures of ` 46,300 lakhs.
6

Other long term liabilities

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

16

36

129
145

24
60

Income received pending amortisation
Other liabilities

7

Provisions

Long - Term
March 31,
2018

Short - Term

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 25)
Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision for Bonus
Provision for Employee Emoluments

142

110

5

3

53

27

6

3

856

507

1,948

1,328

-

-

63

46

1,051

644

2,022

1,380

2,238

1,102

299

133

285

732

-

-

2,523

1,834

299

133

3,574

2,478

2,321

1,513

Other Provisions
Provision for Standard Assets
Provision for Standard Restructured Assets

Altico Capital India Limited
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Particulars

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
8

Short-term borrowings

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

17,000

5,500

10,000

-

5,358

-

32,358

5,500

10,000

-

(253)

-

32,900

60,000

(517)

(1,465)

B

42,130

58,535

(A)+(B)

74,488

64,035

Working Capital Loans (secured)
From banks
Short term loans (Secured)
Other than banks
Loan repayable on demand (cash credit) (secured)
From banks
A
Commercial papers (unsecured)
From Banks
Less: Unamortised discount
Other than banks
Less: Unamortised discount
Total

Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of secured loans:
Secured working capital loans from banks
Particulars

Rate of
Interest

Repayment details

March 31, 2018

HDFC Bank Limited

9.25% 10.00%

Bullet repayment within 12
months

7,400

3,000

IFCI Ltd

9.25% 10.00%

"Repayment in 3 monthly
installements after
moratorium of
9 months"

10,000

-

Bank of Baroda Ltd.

9.25% 10.00%

Bullet repayment within 12
months

4,958

-

Kotak Mahindra bank Ltd

9.25% 10.00%

Bullet repayment within 12
months

10,000

2,500

32,358

5,500

Total

March 31, 2017

Nature of Security:							
Secured by a first pari passu charge on all the present and future receivables of the Company excluding
receivables charged to secure non-current portion of redeemable non convertible debentures.

9

Other Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (note 5)
Statutory Dues Payable
Income received pending amortisation
Accrued Finance Costs (including interest accrued but not
due)
Other Liabilities
Total
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March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

85,385

31,250

802

14

20

28

4,599

3,234

1,976

688

92,782

35,214

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Office
Equipment

Building

Vehicles

Furniture &
Leasehold
Computer
Fixtures
Improvements Equipment

Total

III

10.1	Fixed Assets Tangible Assets
Cost:

25

-

15

25

62

75

202

Additions

5

-

-

-

-

33

38

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at March 31, 2017

30

-

15

25

62

108

240

Additions

56

44

-

198

503

25

826

Disposals

23

-

-

25

63

37

148

As at March 31, 2018

63

44

15

198

502

96

918

23

-

6

20

25

54

128

Additions

4

-

2

2

28

19

55

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

27

-

8

22

53

73

183

Depreciation:
As at March 31, 2016

As at March 31, 2017
Additions

9

1

2

6

36

19

73

Disposals

19

-

-

26

63

35

143

As at March 31, 2018

17

1

10

2

26

57

113

Net Block
As at March 31, 2017

3

-

7

3

9

35

57

As at March 31, 2018

46

43

5

196

476

39

805

10.2	Fixed Assets Intangible Assets

Computer
Software

Cost:
As at March 31, 2016

97

Additions

12

Disposals

-

As at March 31, 2017

109

Additions

27

Disposals

9

As at March 31, 2018

127

Depreciation:
As at March 31, 2016

25

Additions

16

Disposals

-

As at March 31, 2017

41

Additions

18

Disposals

7

As at March 31, 2018

52

Net Block
As at March 31, 2017

68

As at March 31, 2018

75
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
11.1

Non Current Investments :

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Quantity

Quantity

Amount

Amount

Investments in the nature of
credit substitutes

Trade, Quoted (Stated at Cost less
principal repayments)
23% Lotus Greens Constructions
Private Limited (face value
` 1,000,000 each)

-

2,250

-

11,250

15,000

15,000

4,000

8,000

19.5% Century Joint Developments
Private Limited (face value
` 10,000,000 each)

-

210

-

15,834

16% Ramprastha Sare Realty
Private Limited (face value
` 102,666 each)

-

9,500

-

9,640

15,000

26,960

4,000

44,724

19% VGN Developers Private
Limited (face value ` 100 each)

Total

11.2	Current Investments : (Current
March 31, 2018
portion of non current investments)
Quantity

March 31, 2017
Quantity

March 31, 2018
Amount

March 31, 2017
Amount

Investments in the nature of
credit substitutes

Trade, Quoted (Stated at Cost less
principal repayment)
23% Lotus Greens Constructions
Private Limited (face value
` 1,000,000 each)

-

2,250

-

9,375

19% VGN Developers Private
Limited (face value ` 100 each)

15,000

15,000

4,912

4,822

-

210

-

3,166

15,000

17,460

4,912

17,363

19 5% Century Joint Developments
Priva1e Limited (face value
` 10,000,000 each)
Total

	The above current investments are merely current portion of non-current investments.Hence, for measurement
purposes, the investment continues to be treated as long-term investment.

Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Cost of acquisition*

8,912

62,087

Market value*

8,912

62,087

	*Investment in each of the above debentures are privately placed and listed on BSE . However there are no
trades in the debentures of the Company. Hence the cost of Investment is considered as market value.
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) :

March 31, 2017

Differences in depreciation on fixed assets

8

9

Processing fees unamortised

12

22

45

8

21

10

Provision for deferred employee benefits

296

116

Provision on Standard Assets

977

681

Rent Equalisation Reserve
Provision for Leave Encashment

Provision for Gratuity

51

39

1,410

885

Borrowing and other ancilliary costs amortisation

1,422

528

TOTAL (B)

1,422

528

(12)

357

TOTAL (A)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Gross)

Net Deferred Tax (Liability) / Asset [(A) - (B)]
13

Loans and Advances

Non Current
March 31,
March 31,
2018
2017

Current
March 31,
March 31,
2018
2017

Secured Loans
Considered Good

5,61,149

2,84,801

56,495

20,629

-

(399)

-

(299)

-

-

-

-

1,909

798

2,038

860

1,177

1,396

-

-

317

2

78

78

-

18

-

-

5,64,552

4
2,86,620

1,022
59,633

52
21,320

Less: Advance received
Considered Doubtful
	Other Advances (Unsecured Considered
Good)
Prepaid Expenses
	Advance Tax [net of provision for taxation of
` 45,932 lakhs (P.Y. ` 27,327 lakhs)]
Security Deposits
Balance with statutory authorities
Other Receivables

14

Cash and Bank Balances :

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

33,058

9,917

100

10,037

1,000

-

-

1

34,158

19,955

9,687

14,360

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:
On Current Accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cheques on Hand
Cash on Hand
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but
less than 12 months

9,687

14,360

43,845

34,315

Altico Capital India Limited
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III

12

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
15

Other Current Assets :

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Interest accrued and not due on Fixed Deposits

4

20

Interest accrued and due on Investments

-

1,848

Interest accrued but not due on Investments

-

2,228

2,369

3,188

15,420

8,023

17,793

15,307

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

71,462

33,223

Interest on Investments

4,957

17,245

Interest on Bank Fixed Deposits

3,093

2,026

Penal Interest Income

3,400

795

12,242

5,450

28

81

95,182

58,820

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

2

3

2

3

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

4,245

2,990

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

78

66

Leave Encashment

32

13

Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 25)

45

45

461

356

4,861

3,470

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

28,964

9,586

473

313

1,871

260

15

6

31,323

10,165

Interest accrued and due on Loans
Interest accrued but not due on Loans

16

Revenue from Operations :

Interest Income
Interest on Loans

Other Financial services
Financial Advisory Fees
Processing fees

17

Other Income :
Foreign exchange gain (net)

18

Employee Benefit Expenses :
Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Staff Welfare Expenses

19

Finance Costs :
Interest expense
Processing fees on borrowings
Ancillary borrowing costs
Bank Charges
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
Administration and Other Operating Expenses :

March 31, 2017

Rent

523

158

Repairs and Maintenance - Others

179

152

Travelling and Conveyance

433

241

Communication Expenses

54

41

1,285

848

446

158

- Statutory audit fees

12

10

- Limited review fees

5

5

- Tax audit fees

3

3

- Other services

10

8

-

3

Rates and Taxes

363

164

Miscellaneous Expenses

269

208

3,582

1,999

Legal and Professional Fees
CSR expenditure (Refer Note A below)
Auditor's Remuneration

- Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses

A.

Details of CSR expenditure

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(a)

Gross amount to be spent by Company during
the year

446

158

(b)

Amount spent during the year ending on
March 31, 2018

In cash

Yet to be paid
in cash

-

-

-

446

-

446

In cash

Yet to be paid
in cash

-

-

-

158

-

158

(c)

21

22

(i)

Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii)

On purposes other than (i) above

Amount spent during the year ended on
March 31, 2017
(i)

Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii)

On purposes other than (i) above

Provisions and Write-Offs :

Total

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Provision on Standard Assets

1,302

757

Provision on Standard Restructured Assets

(447)

733

855

1,490

Earnings Per Share :

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss (used for
computing Basic / Diluted EPS)

35,497

27,083

Weighted average number of Equity Shares in calculating
Basic EPS

4,795

4,795

Weighted average number of potential equity shares on
account of ESOP's

68

100

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for
Diluted EPS

4,863

4,895

Basic Earnings per Share

7.40

5.65

Diluted Earnings per Share

7.30

5.53

Effect of dilution:

Altico Capital India Limited
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
23

Leases :							
Office premises are obtained on operating lease. There are no subleases. There are no finance leases.
March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

523

158

Not later than one Year

348

24

Later than one year but not later than five years

1,115

-

-

-

Lease Payments for the Year
Minimum Lease Payments

Later than five years
24

Segment Information :

	The Company has a single reportable segment i.e. financing for the purpose of Accounting Standard – AS 17
on ‘Segment Reporting’ notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).
The Company does not have any reportable geographical segment.
25

Gratuity :

	The Company has a defined benefit Gratuity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has not completed five
years service is entitled to gratuity on departure at 4.33% of the basic salary earned during the period of
employment. All other employees are entitled to gratuity on departure at higher of :
a)

15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service; or

b)

4.33% of the basic salary earned during the period of employment.

	The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of
profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet.
Statement of Profit and Loss: (Net employee benefit expense recognised in Employee Benefit Expenses)
March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

26

17

Interest cost on benefit obligation

8

6

Net actuarial(gain) / loss recognised in the year

11

22

Net past service cost

-

-

Net Benefit Expense

45

45

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation

113

70

Current Service Cost

26

17

Interest cost

8

6

Past service cost (Vested Benefit Incurred During the Period)

-

-

(12)

(1)

Actuarial(gain) / loss on obligations

12

21

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

147

113

Current Service Cost

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as below:

Benefits paid
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for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
March 31,
2017
113
(113)
13

March 31,
2016
71
(71)
12

March 31,
2015
32
(32)
6

March 31,
2014
27
(27)
(10)

-

-

-

-

-

	The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

7.85%

7.34%

Discount Rate
Expected rate of return on assets
Employee turnover

N/A

N/A

2.00%

2.00%

	The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market
26

Related Party Disclosures :
a)

Names of Related Parties:
Holding Company
Key Management Personnel

Associates
b)

India Credit Pte Limited (ICPL)
Sanjay Grewal - Chief Executive Officer
Dhruv Jain- Chief Financial Officer
Binoy K Parikh – Company Secretary
Clearwater Investment Advisors India Private Limited
(‘CIAIPL’)

Related Party Transactions:
Non Current
Associate Enterprises
Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
2018
2017
2018
2017
Transactions during the year
Expense Recovery:Salaries,
Wages and Bonus
Balance outstanding as at year
end receivable/ (payable)
Equity Capital

-

-

-

-

-

20

89

20

89

(47,948)

(47,948)

-

-

(47,948)

(47,948)

-

-

-

25

-

25

Other receivables
CIAIPL
c)

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel:
Salaries, Allowances, Bonus and contribution to
provident Fund*
Sanjay Grewal - Chief Executive Officer
Dhruv Jain- Chief Financial Officer
Binoy K Parikh – Company Secretary

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

630
257
61
948

564
255
47
866

* The remuneration to Key Management Personnel includes bonus on accrual basis, however, it does
not include the provision made for Gratuity and Leave Encashment as it is determined on actuarial
basis for the Company as a whole.

Altico Capital India Limited
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Defined benefit obligation
Plan assets
Surplus / (deficit)
Experience adjustments on plan
liabilities-(gains)/losses
Experience adjustments on plan
assets

March 31,
2018
147
(147)
20

III

Amounts for the Current and previous four years are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(` in Lakhs)
27

Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Borrowings related costs

503

330

Directors sitting fees and professional fees

223

220

65

68

Training Expenses

15

-

Subscriptions

16

-

Out of pocket expense (foreign director)

13

4

Travelling and Conveyance

1

2

Miscellaneous Expenses

-

3

836

627

Repairs and Maintenance

The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2018.
28

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with Tax authorities. The Company has
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are
required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material adverse effect on its financial results
at March 31, 2018. Refer note 29 for details on contingent liabilities. In respect of litigations, where the
management assessment of a financial outflow is probable, the Company has made a provision of ` 163
lakhs at March 31, 2018 (at March 31, 2017: ` 163 lakhs).

29

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
The Company has no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2018. The Company had contingent liabilities of
` 433 lakhs as at March 31, 2017 in respect of transfer pricing adjustments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The Company has no commitments as at March 31, 2018 and March March 31, 2017. In Company’s view, owing
to agreement with parties, the undrawn sanction limits are cancellable at Company’s discretion and are not
considered to be binding on the Company.

30	The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2018.
The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes for the year ended March 31, 2017 is as follows:
Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30,
2016:
In (`)
Particulars

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016

SBNs*

Total

Other
denomination
notes#

47,000

2,344

49,344

Add: Withdrawal from bank

-

2,75,000

2,75,000

Add: Permitted receipts

-

-

-

-

(2,05,074)

(2,05,074)

(47,000)
-

72,270

(47,000)
72,270

Less: Permitted payments
Less: Amount deposited in Banks
Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016

* Specified Bank Notes as defined in the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of
Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.O. 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016.
# Other than SBNs
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(` in Lakhs)
Transfer Pricing :

32

Additional disclosures pursuant to various notifications issued by Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’):
i)

Capital to Risk Asset Ratio
Items

ii)

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

i)

CRAR (%)

40.72%

59.46%

ii)

CRAR – Tier I Capital (%)

40.33%

58.95%

iii)

CRAR – Tier II Capital (%)

0.39%

0.51%

iv)	Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II
capital

NIL

NIL

v)	Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt
Instruments

NIL

NIL

Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category
a)

Direct Exposure

i)

Residential Mortgages :

(` in Lakhs)
March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

-

-

6,26,556

3,67,517

-

-

-

-

-

-

	
Lending fully secured by mortgages on
residential property that is or will be occupied by
the borrower or that is rented; (Individual housing
loans up to Rs.15 lakh may be shown separately)
ii)

Commercial Real Estate# :

	
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial
real estates (office buildings, retail space,
multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund
based (NFB) limits;
iii)	Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities
(MBS) and other securitised exposures :
a)

Residential

b) Commercial Real Estate
B)

Indirect Exposure

	
Fund based and non-fund based exposures
on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs)
		

# Exposure excludes interest income accured on underlying assets.
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The Company has a system of maintenance of information and documents required by transfer pricing
legislation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Management is of the opinion that all
international transactions are at arm’s length so that the above legislation will not have any impact on the
Financial Statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision of taxes.

III
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(iii) Asset Liability Management – Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars

Liabilities:

(` in Lakhs)

1 Day to
30/31
Days
(One
Month)

Over One
Month
up to 2
Months

Over 5
Years

Over 3
Years
up to 5
Years

Over
1 Year
up to 3
years

Over 6
Months
up to 1
year

Over 3
Months
up to 6
Months

Over 2
Months
up to 3
Months

Total

14,344

4,750

62,015

32,643

46,891

2,15,060

42,455

-

4,18,158

2,065

-

3,678

9,509

41,242

3,10,846

2,39,837

10,467

6,17,644

912

-

1,000

1,000

2,000

4,000

-

-

8,912

Borrowings
Deposits
Foreign
currency
liabilities
Assets:
Advances*
Foreign
currency assets
Investments ^
As at March 31, 2017
Particulars

(` in Lakhs)

1 Day to
30/31
Days
(One
Month)

Over One
Month
up to 2
Months

Over 5
Years

Over 3
Years
up to 5
Years

Over
1 Year
up to 3
years

Over 6
Months
up to 1
year

Over 3
Months
up to 6
Months

Over 2
Months
up to 3
Months

Total

Liabilities:
2,500

18,000

22,500

43,750

10,000

75,975

11,575

-

1,84,300

Deposits

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign
currency
liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

33

-

1,366

1,899

17,332

2,36,883

47,917

-

3,05,430

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,697

-

2,875

2,875

8,916

44,724

-

-

62,087

Borrowings

Assets:
Advances*
Foreign
currency assets
Investments ^

* Consists of only secured loans
^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes
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(iv) Borrower group-wise classification of loan assets financed:Category wise		

Net of provisions- ` in lakhs

Category

March 31, 2018

1.

Total

Secured

Unsecured

Total

Related Parties
(a)

2.

Subsidiaries

-

-

-

-

-

-

(b)	
Companies in the
same group

-

-

-

-

-

-

(c)	Other related
parties

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,17,644

-

6,17,644

3,05,430

-

3,05,430

6,17,644

-

6,17,644

3,05,430

-

3,05,430

Other than related parties

Total
(b)

Unsecured

Other information

` in lakhs

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a)

Related parties

-

-

(b)

Other than related parties

-

-

Net Non-Performing Assets
(a)

Related parties

-

-

(b)

Other than related parties

-

-

-

-

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
(v)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments^ (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):
` in lakhs
Category

March 31, 2018
Market
Value /
Break up or
fair value or
NAV

1.

Total

Book Value
(Net of
Provisions)

Market
Value /
Break up or
fair value or
NAV

Book Value
(Net of
Provisions)

Related Parties
(a)

2.

March 31, 2017

Subsidiaries

-

-

-

-

(b)	Companies in the same group

-

-

-

-

(c)	Other related parties

-

-

-

-

Other than related parties

8,912

8,912

62,087

62,087

8,912

8,912

62,087

62,087

^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes
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March 31, 2017
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(vi) Investments ^
Particulars
1.

` in lakhs
Current Year

Previous Year

8,912

62,087

-

-

Value of Investments
(i)

Gross Value of Investments

		(a)

In India

		(b)

Outside India,

(ii)

Provisions for Depreciation

		(a)

In India

-

-

		(b)

Outside India,

-

-

8,912

62,087

-

-

(i) Opening balance

-

-

(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year

-

-

(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during
the year

-

-

(iv) Closing balance

-

-

(iii)

Net Value of Investments

		(a)

In India

		(b)

Outside India.

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments.

^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes
(vii) Provisions and contingencies
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss
Account
` in lakhs
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for depreciation on Investment

-

-

Provision towards NPA

-

-

18,975

14,546

-

-

Provision for Standard Assets

1,302

757

Provision for Standard Restructured Assets

(447)

732

19,830

16,035

Provision made towards Income tax
Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

TOTAL
(viii) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
a.

Concentration of Advances
` in lakhs

Particulars
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to
Total Advances of the NBFC
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Current Year

Previous Year

4,42,134

2,98,930

72%

98%

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
b.

Concentration of Exposures
Current Year
4,42,134

Previous Year
3,40,698

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers /
customers

71%

93%

* Includes total exposure of the Company i.e. Loans as well as Investments in the nature of credit substitute.
c.

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators : None

d.

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by NBFC

		

The Company has not exceeded the SBL / GBL during the financial year.

e.

Concentration of NPAs
` in lakhs

Particulars
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts
f.

Current Year

Previous Year

-

-

Sector-wise NPAs
` in lakhs
Sr. No.

g.

Sector

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that sector
Current Year
Previous Year

1

Agriculture & allied activities

-

-

2

MSME

-

-

3

Corporate borrowers

-

-

4

Services

-

-

5

Unsecured personal loans

-

-

6

Auto loans

-

-

7

Other personal loans

-

-

Movement of NPAs
` in lakhs

Particulars
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year**
(c) Reductions during the year**
(d) Closing balance
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year**
(c) Reductions during the year**
(d) Closing balance
(iv)	Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding
provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Provisions made during the year**
(c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions**
(d) Closing balance

Current Year
Nil

Previous Year
Nil

14,641
(14,641)
-

-

11,713
(11,713)
-

-

2,928
(2,928)

-
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Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers*

III

` in lakhs

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
** The Company had one lending account which was classified as standard restructured asset under para 4.4.1
of Annexure IV of the Master Direction. Under para 4.2.1 of annexure IV of the said Master Direction, this should
be treated as substandard asset. However, as a substantial portion of the outstanding loan together with the
interest due thereon have been prepaid and the borrower has clearly demonstrated “Satisfactory performance”
during the “Specified Period” as defined under Appendix 2 of Annexure IV of Master Direction. Accordingly,
the same has been appropriately reflected as a standard restructured asset in the financial statements.
(ix) Customer Complaint
Particulars
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

Current Year
-

Previous Year
-

(b)

No. of complaints received during the year

-

-

(c)

No. of complaints redressed during the year

-

-

(d)

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

-

-

(x)	The Company neither held any derivatives during the year nor has any outstanding contract at the
year end.
(xi) Exposure to capital market
` in lakhs
Sr. No.
1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

94

Particulars
Direct investment in equity shares, convertible
bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which
is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals
for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and
units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
Advances for any other purposes where shares
or convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken
as primary security;
Advances for any other purposes to the extent
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e.
where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures /
units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not
fully cover the advances;
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers;
Loans sanctioned to corporates against the
security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;
Bridge loans to companies against expected
equity flows / issues;
All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both
registered and unregistered)
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As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
(xii) Details of financing of parent company products : None

III

(xiii) Unsecured Advances : None
(xiv) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators : None

(xvi) Draw down from reserves : None
(xvii) Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year : None
Sr. No.

Instrument

Credit rating agency

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

1

Commercial
Paper

India Ratings & Research Private
Limited

A1+

A1+

2

Bank Term
Loan

India Ratings & Research Private
Limited

AA-

AA-

3

NCD

India Ratings & Research Private
Limited

AA-

AA-

(xviii) The Company has not entered into any securitisaion / assignment transactions during the year.
` in lakhs

(xix) Liability side break-up
Particulars

March 31, 2018
Amount
outstanding

March 31, 2017

Amount
overdue

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdue

Liabilities side :
(1)	Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid:
(a)

Debenture

1,03,050

-

66,300

-

5,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,44,850

-

58,000

-

-

-

-

-

42,900

-

60,000

-

-

-

-

-

22,358

-

-

-

In the form of Unsecured debentures

-

-

-

-

(b)	
In the form of partly secured
debentures i.e debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of
security

-

-

-

-

(c)

-

-

-

-

				

: Secured
: Unsecured

(b)

Deferred Credits

(c)

Term Loans

(d)

Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

(e)

Commercial Paper

(f)

Public Deposits

(g)

Other Loans

(2)	
Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid):
(a)

Other public deposits
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(xv) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators : None
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Assets side :

As at March 31,
2018

As at March 31,
2017

Amount
outstanding

Amount
outstanding

(3)	Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
(other than those included in (4) below ):
(a)

Secured

(b)

Unsecured

6,17,644

3,05,430

-

-

(4)	
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire counting
towards AFC activities
(i)	
Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors :

-

		(a)

Financial lease

-

-

		(b)

Operating lease

-

-

(ii)	
Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors :
		(a)

Assets on hire

-

-

		(b)

Repossessed Assets

-

-

(iii)

Other loans counting towards AFC Activities :

		(a)

Loans where assets have been repossessed

-

-

		(b)

Loans other than (a) above

-

-

4,912

17,363

(a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

(5)	Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1.

Quoted :
(i)

Shares:

				
(ii)

Debenture and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

-

-

-

-

4,912

17,363

(a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

(iv) Government Securities
(v)
2.

Others (Investment in the nature of credit substitute)

Unquoted :
(i)

Shares:

				
(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities

-

-

(v)

-

-

4,000

44,724

(a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

Others

Long Term investments :
1.

Quoted :
(i)

Shares :

				
(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities
(v)
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4,000

44,724
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Assets side :

Amount
outstanding

Amount
outstanding

Shares:

				

(a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities

-

-

(v)

-

-

Others

Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’)
 he company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31,
T
2018, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the
grant are as below.

	The board of directors approved the Equity settled Altico Stock based Incentive plan (Scheme 2015) for
issue of stock options to the key employees and directors of the company. According to the Scheme ,the
employee selected by the remuneration committee from time to time will be entitled to stock options,
subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz., continuing employment of 5 years. The
contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 20 years as per
the Scheme.. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:
Vesting period

5 years

Exercise period

During the life of the options subject to events as specified in the Scheme 2015

Expected life

20 years

Exercise price

` 39.00 – ` 80.07

The details of activity under the Scheme 2015 are summarized below:
March 31, 2018
No. of
options
(in lakhs)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year

March 31, 2017

WAEP (`)

No. of
options
(in lakhs)

WAEP (`)

100

42.80

110

42.61

Granted during the year

46

50.44

Nil

Nil

Lapsed during the year

Nil

Nil

10

Nil

Forfeited during the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Exercised during the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Outstanding at the end of the year

146

50.44

100

42.80

Exercisable at the end of the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

	The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2018 is
24.38 years (P.Y. 18.24 years).

Altico Capital India Limited

97

Financial Statements

Unquoted :
(i)

33

As at March 31,
2017

III

2.

As at March 31,
2018

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018
	The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the fair value considering the following
inputs:
Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Dividend yield (%)

0.00%

0.00%

Expected volatility

0.42 - 0.50

0.47

6.57% - 8.00%

8.00%

95.67

52.30

INR 39.00 – INR
80.07

INR 39.00 – INR
47.50

2.00 - 3.50

3.50

Risk-free interest rate
Weighted average share price (INR)
Exercise price (INR)
Expected life of options granted in years

	The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily
indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
	The company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the company used the fair
value model to determine compensation, its profit after tax and earnings per share as reported would have
changed to the amounts indicated below:
Particulars

March 31, 2018
` in lakhs

March 31, 2017
` in lakhs

35,497

27,083

-

-

712

441

34,785

26,642

- As reported

7.40

5.65

- Proforma

7.40

5.65

- As reported

7.30

5.53

- Proforma

7.30

5.53

Profit after tax as reported
Add: ESOP cost using the intrinsic value method
Less: ESOP cost using the fair value method
Proforma profit after tax
Earnings Per Share
Basic

Diluted
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Upgradations to re- No. of borstructured standard rowers
category during
Amount outthe year
standing

3

Provision
thereon

Restructured AcNo. of borcounts as on March rowers
31, 2018
Amount outstanding

Provision
thereon

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Provision
thereon

-

-

-

Amount outstanding

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

Standard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Under SME Debt Restructuring
Mechanism
Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

285

5,707

1

447

8,934

1

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

Standard

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

Others

* Includes reduction in existing restructured account on account of repayments received during the year.

7

Write-offs of reNo. of borstructured accounts rowers
during the year
Amount outstanding

6

-

No. of borrowers

-

Provision
thereon

Downgradations
of restructured
accounts during
the year

-

Amount outstanding

5

-

-

No. of borrowers

Restructured
standard advances
which cease to
attract higher provisioning and / or
additional risk
weight at the end
of the FY
and hence need
not be shown
as restructured
standard advances
at the beginning of
the next FY

4

Provision
thereon

-

-

-

-

Provision
thereon

-

-

-

Amount outstanding

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Provision
thereon

No. of borrowers

-

Amount outstanding

Fresh restructuring
during the year

-

No. of borrowers

2

Details

Restructured Accounts as on April
1, 2017

Doubtful

SubStandard

Asset Classification

Standard

Under CDR Mechanism

Type of Restructuring

1

Sl.
No.

Disclosure of Restructured Accounts as at March 31, 2018

Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

1

285

285

5,707

1

1
5,707

447

8,934

1

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

Standard

447

8,934

1

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

Total

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

Total

Financial Statements

Altico Capital India Limited

Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285

5,707

1

447

8,934

1

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

2,928

14,641

1

-

-

-

732

-

14,641

1

-

-

Total

` in lakhs

III
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7

Write-offs of reNo. of borstructured accounts rowers
during the year
Amount outstanding

Provision
thereon

Restructured AcNo. of borcounts as on March rowers
31, 2017
Amount outstanding

Provision
thereon

-

Provision
thereon

6

-

-

Amount outstanding

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

No. of borrowers

-

Provision
thereon

Downgradations
of restructured
accounts during
the year

-

Amount outstanding

5

-

-

-

-

No. of borrowers

Restructured
standard advances
which cease to
attract higher provisioning and / or
additional risk
weight
at the end of the FY
and hence need
not be shown
as restructured
standard advances
at the beginning of
the next FY

4

Provision
thereon

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Provision
thereon

Upgradations to re- No. of borstructured standard rowers
category during the
Amount outyear
standing

-

Amount outstanding

3

-

-

Provision
thereon

No. of borrowers

-

Amount outstanding

Fresh restructuring
during the year

-

No. of borrowers

2

Details

Restructured Accounts as on April
1, 2016

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

Loss

SubStandard

Asset Classification

Standard

Under CDR Mechanism

Type of Restructuring

1

Sl.
No.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Under SME Debt Restructuring
Mechanism
StanSub- Doubt- Loss
Total
dard
Stanful
dard

34. Disclosure of Restructured Accounts as at March 31, 2017

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

732

14,641

Standard

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

Others
Loss

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

732

14,641

Total

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

732

14,641

Standard

SubStandard

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Loss

-

-

Doubtful

Total

1

-

-

-

732

14,641

1

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

732

14,641

Total

` in lakhs
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Previous Year Comparatives
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
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Chartered Accountants
(Formerly known as Altico Capital India Private Limited)

III

The company has classified this year’s figures to conform to previous year’s classification.
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